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Office Locations

ALTAVISTA

MAIN OFFICE
622 Broad Street
Altavista, Virginia 24517
Telephone: (434) 369-3000

VISTA OFFICE

1301 N. Main Street
Altavista, Virginia 24517
Telephone: (434) 369-3001

LYNCHBURG

AIRPORT OFFICE
14580 Wards Road
Lynchburg, Virginia 24502
Telephone: (434) 237-3788

TIMBERLAKE OFFICE

20865 Timberlake Road
Lynchburg, Virginia 24502
Telephone: (434) 237-7936

OLD FOREST ROAD OFFICE

3309 Old Forest Road
Lynchburg, Virginia 24501
Telephone: (434) 385-4432

FOREST

FOREST OFFICE
14417 Forest Road
Forest, Virginia 24551
Telephone: (434) 534-0451

AMHERST

AMHERST OFFICE
193 Richmond Highway
Ambherst, Virginia 24521

Telephone: (434) 946-7814

SMITH MOUNTAIN LAKE

LOAN PRODUCTION OFFICE
74 Scruggs Road, Suite 102
Moneta, Virginia 24121
Telephone: (540) 719-0193
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMEilS AND FRIENDS:

Another record year of earnings was achleved by your Company i m 2006 as net income Iafter
taxes amounted to $2,412:000, an increase of 14.48% over 2005. Basm net income per share for
2006 was $1.65 and the réturn on average assets and the return on av Frage equity reached levels
of 1.00% or above and 10 00% or above, respectlvely, for the first Ume since 2000. Growth in
net loans outstanding and’ “higher yield on loans were the primary factors in' the mcrease in net
income for 2006. : N S -

Total assets ended 2006 at $256,421,000, %another record high. ‘Deposus grew 10. 31% to
$230,817,000 in 2006. Time deposits reflected the majority of the i increase in deposits for the
year and will likely contnbute to higher cost of funds and potentially lower margins in 2007. |Net
loans grew 14.68% in 2006 to $207,861 OOOW The quality of the loa‘n portfolio continues to be
strong, as net charge-offs to average net loans amounted to only 0. 04% for 2006. Non- accrual
loans and loans 30 days or more past due were collectively O. 34%|Iof total gross loans as of
December 31, 2006, hlstoncally low levels. 'l]‘

Stockholders’ equity at year-end 2006 was $24 492,000, an mcrease of $1,280,000 over the
previous year. Book value per share was $16 66 as of the end of 2006. Average equ1ty to
average assets for the year was 9.91% and the Company continues to be ‘well capitalized” by all
regulatory standards. The cash dividend rate for 2006 increased 12. 21% to $0.55 per share and
the dividend payout ratio for the year was 33 25% 2006 marked the -nO‘h consecutive year of an
increase in the cash d1v1denh'rate |

In May, 2006 we relocated our in-store Brooklvllle Kroger office one and one-half miles west to
a more fraditional stand- alone branch facrllty on Timberlake Road m Campbell County. ‘A
picture of this office graces: lthe cover of this Annual Report. Our decision to'relocate this ofﬁce
has been substantiated by an increase of approx1mate1y 41.58% 1nlthe deposit base for the
Timberlake Branch as of the end of 2006 smce'opemng in mid-May. Iloan activity at this ofﬁce
is also appreciably stronger since the relocation! ‘
Additional expansion occurred in November, 2006 with the opening of a new branch office in
the Town of Amherst to serve the Amherst County market. The demographlcs of Amherst
County are similar to those of our Campbell County base and we sensei 1a demand from Amherst
for the services of an established community t!)ankmg organization. WEe have been met with a
warm reception in our temporary location and look forward toibeginning construction ofl a
permanent facility in 2007. I

!

|
622 Broad Street * P.O. Box 29 - Altavista, Virgilnia 24517 - (434) 369-3000 * Fax (434) 369-7190
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2006 saw the retirement of Betty S. Adkins, Vice President, after more than 45 years with First
National Bank. With respensibility for deposit services, Beity’s customer knowledge and
dedication and loyalty to the Company were unsurpassed. Betty is mlssed by her customers and
co-workers, but we still benefit from her smiling face and positive attitude on drop-by visits to
the bank.

Perhaps the most significant accomplishment of 2006 was formulatlon of a strategic plan
outlining a direction for the Company for the next 5 years as we seek to pelpetuate our growth
and profitability. The vision statement from the plan states that First! Natlonal Bank of Altavista
will be the premier community financial institution in our Regloln 2000 market. We will
continually seek to leverage our strong heritage, our exceptional personal service and our local
“decision making through our greatest asset, our people, recognizing that our ultimate purpose for
being in business is to enhance the value of our shareholders’ investment.

We encourage your review of the wealth of information contained in this Annual Report and
hope you will join us for our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held at ll 30 a.m., Tuesday,
April 10, 2007 in the Fellowship Hall of Altavista Presbyterian |Church, 707 Broad Street,
Altavista, Virginia.

Thank you for your support of Pinnacle Bankshares and for the business you share with First

National Bank.
= GC.Q }‘

Robert H. Gilliam, J . ,
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 23, 2007

j
622 Broad Street - P.O. Box 29 = Altavista, Virginia 24517 * (434) 369-3000 * Fax (434) 369-7190
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PINNACLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDMRY
Selected Consohdated Financial Informatlon
(In thousands except ratlos share and per share data)
al Years ended December 31,

1
|

2006 | 2005 2004

2003 2002
Income Statement Data: ' i ’
Net interest income $ 9,192 7,983 7,400 7,083 {7,096
Provision for loan losses 339, 230 223 470 429
Noninterest income 2 SOOl 2,396 2,255 2.578 1,756
Noninterest expenses 7,825 | , 7,166 |+6,901 6,738 5,814
Income tax expense 1,116 , _ 876 'l 712 681 , 723
Net income 2,412 ‘ 2,107 1,819 1,772 .1,886
Per Share Data: ‘ :
Basic net income 1 3 1.65 ‘ 1.44 1.25 1.22 . 1.30
Diluted net income o164 1.43 1.23 1.21 11,29
Cash dividends 055 0.49 0.45 0.44 10.41
Book value 16.66 | 15.91 1524 1471 14.02
Weighted-Average Shares Outstam_iing: '_.F};;.;, '
Basic ! 1,459,007 "]‘ 1,458,706 1 45] 406 1,455,530 1,453,013
Diluted 1,478,128 ! - 1,476,288 1,47: l. 442 1,469,739 1,461,300
Balance Sheet Data: : ‘ !
Assets $ 256,421 ¢t 233,490 219'8I3 206,344 199,899
Loans, net 207,861 | 181,268 155 846 147,883 129999
Securities 24,866 29,261 34 224 37,108 42‘,731
Cash and cash equivalents 14,586 13,814 17336 13,766 19.963
Deposits 230,817 209,246 196,639 183,865 178,243
Stockholders’ equity 24,492 23,212 20207 21,435 203372
Performance Ratios: \ '
Return on average assets 1.00% 0.94% 0.!156% 0.87% 6.94%
Return on average equity 10.10% \ 9.29% 8.33% 8.51% 9.79%
Dividend payout 33.25% k 33.93% 36.(}6% 36.07% 31.54%
Asset Quality Ratios: \ !
Allowance for loan losses to total |
loans, net of uneamed income and- ! .
fees 084% | 0.83% 0.94% 1.02% 0:99%
Net charge-offs to average loans, | : L
net of unearned income and fees 0.04% l\ 0.13% 0.16% 0.16% 0.24%
Capital Ratios: | .
Leverage 9.80% l 9.88% 9.85% 9.79% 9.44%
Risk-based: !
Tier 1 capital 9.92% 10.54% 10.9i§% 11.57% 12.;’;7%
Total capital 10.64% 11.23% 1 l.7f!i% 12.45% 13.|21%
Average equity to average assets 991% - 10.07% 10.32% 10.20% 9.62%




Management’s Discussion and Analysis
{in thousands, except ratios, share and per share data) ,

The following discussion is’ quahﬁed in its entirety by the more detailed mformatron and the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual 'Report In addition to the
historical information contained herein, this Annual Report contains forward lookmg statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward- ]ookmg statements which are based on
certain assumptions and describe future plans, strategies, and expectatlons of management are generally
identifiable by use of words such as “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “antrcrpate v “estlmate " “project,” “may,”

“will” or similar expressions. Although we believe our plans, intentions and expectauons reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that these plans; 1ntentrons or expectatrons
will be achieved. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently
uncertain, and actual results, performance or achievements could differ matenally from those contemplated.
Factors that could have a material adverse effect on our operations and futtllre prospects include, but are not
limited to, changes in: interest rates; general economic conditions; the leglslatlve/regulalory climate; monetary
and fiscal policies of the U.S. government, including policies of the U.S. Treasury and the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System; the quality or composition of the loan and/or 1nvestment portfolros demand for loan
products; deposit flows; competition; demand for financial services in our market area; and accounting principles,
policies and guidelines. These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluatmg forward-looking
statements contained herein. Bankshares bases its forward-looking stateme'nts on managements beliefs and
assumptions based on information available as of the date of this report. You shouldI not place undue reliance on
such statements, because the assumptions, beliefs, expectations and prOJectlons about future events on which they
are based may, and often do, differ materially from actual results. We undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statement to reflect developments occurring after the statement is made.

Company Overview

Pinnacle Bankshares Corporation, a Virginia corporation (Bankshares), was organlzed m 1997 and is registered as
a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as  amended. Bankshares is
headquartered in Altavista, Virginia. Bankshares conducts all of its business actmtles through the branch offices
of its wholly owned subsidiary bank, The First National Bank of Altavista (the |Bank). Bankshares exists
primarily for the purpose of holding the stock of its subsidiary, the Bank, and [of such other subsidiaries as it may
acquire or establish,

The Bank was organized as a national bank in 1908 and commenced its general banklng operations in December
of that year, providing services to commercial and agricultural businesses ar'rd mdmduals in the Altavista area.
With an emphasis on personal service, the Bank today offers a broad range of commercral and retail banking
products and services including checking, savings and time deposits, 1nd1vrdual reurement accounts, merchant
bankcard processing, residential and commercial mortgages, home equity lloans consumer installment loans,
agricultural loans, investment loans, small business loans, commercial lines|of credtt and letters of credit. The
Bank also offers a full range of investment, insurance and annuity producis through 1ts association with Banker’s
Investments, LLC, and Banker’s Insurance, LLC. The Bank has two wholly owned subsrdtanes ENB Property
Corp., which holds title to Bank premises real estate, and First Properties, [Inc., Wthh holds title to other real
estate owned from foreclosures. -

The following discussion supplements and provides information about the ‘major!components of the results of
operations and financial condition, liquidity and capital resources of Bankshares and its subsidiary (collectively
the Company). This discussion and analysis should be read in conjuncuon with’ the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes.
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|
Executive Summary i : ]I )

The Company serves a trade area ‘consisting pnmanly of Campbel] County, northem P1ttsylvan1a County, eastern

. Bedford County, northern Frankhn County, Amherst ‘County and the city of Lynchburg from facilities located in

the town of Altavista and the. c1ty of Lynchburg, V1rg1n1a In addition, in June 1999 the Company opened the
Airport facility, located just outside the Lynchburgl city limits. In August 2000 the Company opened the Old
Forest Road facility, located on Old Forest Road in. Lynchburg, and the Brookwlle Plaza facility, located on
Timberlake Road-in. Lynchburg' The Company opened these offices to better lserve the Lynchburg andl northern
Campbell County areas. To better service eastern Bedford County, the Company opened the Forest facrhty in
August 2004 located at the 1ntersect10n of Perrowville Road and Route 221. In July 2005, the Company opened
the Smith Mountain [ake Loan Production Office llocated on Scruggs Road|in Moneta. In May 2006 the
Company moved the Brookvrlle Plaza facility on Trmberlake Road in Lyncht‘nurg to a new full serwce facility
approximately 1.5 miles away on Timberlake Road in ‘Campbeéll County now referred to as the Trmberlake
facility. This move was completed to better ser‘ncel dur customers by provrdmlo a drrve thru, safe depos1t boxes,
night depository and the same good service given at the previous facility. In November 2006, the Company
opened the Amherst Office located on Richmond nghway in Amherst to extend our services 1o, Amherst County
and further expand our footpnnt "The Company operates in a well- dlversrﬁed' industrial economic reglon that
does not depend upon one or a few types of commerce : '1

Bk 1

' 1
The Company earns revenues on the interest margln between the interest 11 charges on loans it extends to

customers and interest received on the Company’s secunues portfolio net of lhe interest it pays on deposrts to
customers. The Company alsot earns revenues on :servxce charges on depolsrt and loan products, gains on
securities that are called or sold, fees on sales of mortgages and other nonintere! st income items mcludmg but not
limited to overdraft fees, commrssmns from investment, insurance and annuity s.tles safe deposit box rentals, and
automated teller machine surcharges The Company § revenue generating activities ‘and related exper'lses are
outlined in the consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements o'f changes in stockholders' equity
and comprehensive income and accompanying notes add in-“Results of Operatlor‘ls below. 1|

The Company generates cash through its operating, 1|nvestmg and financing acttlvrtles The generatlon of cash
flows is outlined more fully in the consolidaled statements of cash flows and accompanying notes 'and in
“Liquidity and Asset/Liability Management below.

The Company’s balance sheet expenenced strong gr|owth in its loan and’ deposrt portfolios and good |growth
overall in 2006 assisted by growth in the commercial Ioan portfolio, loan productlon at our Smith Mountam Lake
loan production facility and continued deposit and loan growth at the Forest facrhty The overall growth -of -the
Company is outlined in the consolldated balance sheets and accompanying notes land the "Investment Portfoho
"Loan Portfolio," "Bank Premises and Equipment,” "Deposrts and "Capital ReSOI|erCS discussions below.|

The Company looks to continue growmg in 2007 andlplans to research further lexpansron opportunities.| While
growing, the Company is continually striving to leverage efficiencies from!our r'eportmg and imaging systems.
The Company is also striving to make our customers’ l1ves more convenient by offenng innovative products and
services and providing many channels to bank with us including Internet bankmg, Internet bill pay, telephone
banking, debit cards and real-time ATMs. The CompaHy will continue to strive to identify and install convenient

products and services in 2007 with the goal to better enhance the customer’s experlence with the Company. |
' | | !

l
Total assets at December 31, 2006 were $256,421, up 9 82% from $233,490 at De'cember 31, 2005. The pnnc1pal
components of the Company’s assets at the end of the year were $14,586 in cash and cash equivalents, $24,866 in
securities and $207.861 in net loans. During the year ended December 31, 2006; gross loans increased 14. ’M% or
$26,907. The Company’s lending activities are a pnncnp!tl source of income. i |

i |
Total liabilities at December 31, 2006 were $231,929, u1p 10.30% from $210,278 at December 31, 2005, with the
increase reflective of an increase in total deposits of $2l 571 or 10.31%. Noninlerest- bearing demand depos1ts
8
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increased $1,717 or 7.84% and represented 10.24% of total deposits at December 31, 2006, compared to 10.47%
at December 31, 2005. Savings and NOW accounts increased $5,137 or 7. 94% and represented 30.24% of total
deposits at December 31, 2006, compared to 30.90% at December 31, 2005. Tlme deposnls increased $14,717 or
12.00% at December 31, 2006 and represented 59.52% of total deposits at December 31, 2006, compared to
58.63% at December 31, 2005. The Company's deposits are provided by 1nd1v1duals and businesses located
within the communities served.

Total stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2006 was $24,492 compared to $23,212 at'December 31, 2005.

The Company had net income of $2,412 for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to net income of

$2,107 for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of 14.48%. ,

Profitability as measured by the Company’s return on average assets (ROA) jwas | OO% in 2006, compared to
0.94% in 2005. Another key indicator of performance, the return on average equity (ROE), was 10.10% for 2006,
compared to 9.29% for 2005.

Ove_rv1_ew of 2005 and 2004

Total assets at December 31, 2005 were $233,490, up 6.22% from $219,813 at{December 31, 2004. The principal
components of the Company s assets at the end of the year were $13,814 in cash and cash equivalents, $29,261 in
securities and $181,268 in net loans. During the year ended December 31, 2005, gross loans increased 14.00% or
$22,470. The Company’s lending activities are a principal source of income. ’

Total liabilities at December 31, 2005 were $210,278, up 6.41% from $197,606 at December 31, 2004, with the
increase reflective of an increase in total deposits of $12,607 or 6.41%. Nonmterest -bearing demand deposits
increased'$2,150 or 10.88% and represented 10.47% of total deposits at December 31, 2005 compared to 10.05%
at December 31, 2004. Savings and NOW accounts increased $4,852 or 8. [1% and represented 30.90% of total
deposits at December 31, 2005, compared to 30.42% at December 31, 2004. | Time deposns increased $5,605 or
4.79% at December 31, 2005 and represented 58.63% of total deposits at December 31, 2005, compared to
59.53% at December 31, 2004. The Company’s deposits are provided by individuals and businesses located
within the communities served. :

Total stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2005 was $23,212 compared to $22,207 at December 31, 2004.

The Company had net income of $2,107 for the year ended December 31,
$1,819 for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of 15.83%.

2005, Compared o net income of

. I
Profitability as measured by the Company’s return on average assets (ROA) was|0.94% in 2005, compared to
0.86% in 2004. Another key indicator of performance, the return on average lequity (ROE), was 9.29% for 2005,
compared to 8.33% for 2004. :

Results of Operations

Net Interest Income. Net interest income represents the principal source
interest income is the amount by which interest and fees generated
interest-earning assets exceed the interest expense associated with funding t

of earmngs for the Company. Net
from; l!oans, securities and other
hose assets Changes in the amounts

and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as tpelr respectwe yields and rates, have
a significant impact on the level of net interest income. Changes in the mterest rate environment and the
Company’s cost of funds also affect net interest income. |

The net interest spread increased to 3.54% for the year ended December 31,2006 from 3.43% for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Net interest income was $9,192 ($9,287 on a tax- equ1valem basis) for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to $7,983 ($8,156 on a tax-equivalent basrs) for the year ended December 31,
2005, and is attributable to interest income from loans, federal funds sold and securities exceeding the cost

9




associated with interest paid on deposits and other borrowmgs In 2006, our loans repriced at higher rates more
rapidly than did our deposits, therefore increasing our interest rate spread. The Bank’s yield on interest-earning
assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 was O 82% higher than the, year ‘ended December 31, 2005 due to
lower yielding assets being rep]aced by higher ylcldmg ones in 2006. The Bank’s cost of funds rate on interest-
bearing liabilities in 2006 was 0.71% higher compared to 2005. . 1

1

The net interest spread decreased to 3.43% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 3.50% for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Net 1nterest income was $7,983 ($8,156 on a tax-equrvalent basis) for the year ended
December 31, 2005, compared to $7,400 ($7.605 oln a tax-equivalent basrs) tor the year ended December 31, i
2004, and is attributable to mterest income from loans federal funds so]d dnd securities exceedrng’the cost
associated with interest paid on deposrts and other borrowmgs In 2005, cur deposnts repriced at higher rates more
rapidly than did our loans, therefore lowering our mlerest rate spread. The Bank’s s yield on 1nterest-eam1ng assets
for the year ended December 31 2005 was 0.47% hrgher than the year ended IDecember 31, 2004 due to lower
yielding assets being replaced by higher yielding ones in 2005. The Bank’s cost of funds rate on 1nlercst -bearing
liabilities in 2005 was 0.54% hlgher compared to 2004 I

The Company s net interest margin increased in 200? from 2005 levels. The (,ompany attempts to 1ncr|ease net
interest margin by product prrcmg strategies. Manyleconomlc forecasts of inferest rates for 2007 predlct that
interest rates may decrease if thei overall economylshows signs of slugglshne'ss On the contrary, rates may
increase to combat increasing mﬂanon While there is no guarantee of’ howl rates may change in 2007 the
Company will strive to price products that are competntwe in the market, allow for growth and commue to
improve the net interest margin. The Company also cgntrnues to strive to find ncl,w sources of nonmterest*mcome

to combat the effects of volatility in the interest rate en|v1ronmem |

The following table presents the major categories | 'of interest-earning assets‘ interest-earning lrabrlmes and
stockholders’ equity with corresponding average balances related interest mcomc or interest expense and
resulting yield and rates for the penods indicated. \L y ,

|

1 .
ANALYSIS OF NET INIERESTINOUVIE '
Years ended Decerrber 31, ‘
© 2006 2005 k . 2004 ,
Interest Rute o Interest  Rate B Interest Rate
Awerage oo eamed’ A‘ﬁr@ oy eamed’ A'W' ooy emlmd'
Assts balace(1)  eperse paid hkace() e  pid ' bdaoe) e peid
. ! H B
Interest-caming assets: ¥ ' 1
Los (2X3) $ 319 139m 708% 171388 10847 633% 139D 8991 58%%
Taxhle a0 W 9% B LI 48% 12533 1301 48%
Taxewenpt (4) 6555 n 568% R.501 5 &M% 10072 69 6.74%
Inteest-carming cepsits 9] s sem A5 6 29%% .m 1 1.79%
Feckeral finds sald 7685 %8 478% 9217 B 28 | 10495 135 i129%
i |
Totl interest-caming assets 29771 15712 685% 21l2.861 2883  60% 199,822 11,177 5.56%
Oher ssts: | . !
Allowance for Joon losses (163) (1,556 (1608) ‘
Cehad de frombanks 499 6115 430
Cther assets, ret 8367 7601 . 902 |
I 1.
Total assets $ 24099 25111 211,596
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2006 25 20
Inderest Rate Interest Rate ] : Triterest Rate
Liahilities and Average incomy  exmedd Avermge income/  eamed/  Avernge income’ earned/
Stockhiders’ ety b)) e puid . bdacel)  epase  paid|  hiwxel)  opeme  pud
Interest-bearing lisbilities: , :
Savings and NOW $ 66666 1,048 1.57% 6334 549 087% 62195 U6 0.56%
Time 127,185 5367 40% 11689 4,119 35% 0808 3134 291%
Other bormowings 158 10 633% 260 16 615% 0 »n 6.11%
Feckral Fumds Purchased - — — 75 3 400% — — —
194,009 6425 331% 180,604 4,687 26K 170363 38R 206%
Norinzerest-bearing lizbilites: )
Demond deposits 2008 21,169 18,886
Otter lishitities 1064 662 505
217071 2435 189.755
Stockholders” exquity 25858 2676 21,841
240929 25111 21159%
Net irterest incone 9287 8,156 7605
Nt interest margin (5) 405% 3.83% 380%
Net interest spread (6) 3.54% 343% ’ 3.50%

(1) Averages are daily averages.

(2) Loan interest income includes amortization of loan fees of $53 in 2006 and accretion of
respectively.

(3) For the purpose of these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loans.

(4) Tax-exempt income from investment securities is presented on a tax-equivalent basis ass
2005 and 2004,

loan fees of $45 and $32 in 2005 and 2004

uming a 34% U.S. Federal tax rate for 2006,

t

(5) The net interest margin is calculated by dividing net interest income by average total interest-earning assefs.
(6} The net interest spread is calculated by subtracting the interest rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities from the interest rate earned on

interést-eamning assets.

As discussed above, the Company’s net interest income is affected by the

i
change|in the amounts and mix of

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, referred to as “volume change,” as well as by changes in

. . . ) . f
yields earned on interest-earning assets and rates paid on deposits and other

borrowed funds, referred to as “rate

» |
change.” The following table presents, for the periods indicated, a summary of changes in interest income and
interest expense for the major categories of interest-earning assets and interest- bearmg liabilities and the amounts

of change attributable to variations in volumes and rates.
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information available to them at the time of their exammauons X

RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS y!
.ll Years endedlDecember 31,

2006 compared to 2005 || 2003 compared to 2004
I Increase (decrease) i ‘Increase (decrease)
VYolume Rate Net i Volume Rate | Net
Interest earned on interest-earning assets: I ‘ i ' I
Loans (1) $ 1,60t 1,531 3,132 1,087 769 1,856
[nvestment securities: |
Taxable , (129) (29) (1 58)l (147) (6) {153)
Tax-exempt (2) (126} (54) (180) (111) 25 , (86)
Interest-earning deposits | 2 (3} (nH" 2 l 3
Federal funds sold I(34) 138 104 | (14) 142 ' 128
Total interest earned on - " |
interest-earning assets - 1,314 1,583 2,897 | 817 931 1,748
Interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities: 5 '
Savings and NOW | 30 469 499 7 196 , 203,
Time ' 383 865 1,248 281 704 "985
Federal funds purchased (3) — (3) 3 — ! 3
Other borrowings 1(6) — (6) .. (6) — t{6)
Total interest paid on | . U,
interest-bearing liabilities 404 1,334 1,738 4, 285 900 1,185
Change in net interest income $ 910 249 1,159 h 532 31 563

1 : : | ' |

(1) Non-accrual loans are included in the average loan totals used in the calculation of this table.
(2) Tax-exempt income from investment securities is presented onI 'a tax equivalent basis assumingla 34% U.S. Federal tax rate. i
Provision for Loan Losses. The provrsmn for loan losses is based upon the'Company s evaluation of the tquahty
of the loan portfolio, total outstandmg and comm1tted loans, prevrous loan loslses and current and antncnpated
economic conditions. The amount: of the provision for Joan losses is charge agamst earnings. Actual loan losses
are charges against the aliowance for loan losses. ! ' v |

! !
The Company’s allowance for loan losses is typlcally maintained at a level deemed adequate to provrde for
known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio. No assurance can be given tha't unforeseen adverse economlc
conditions or other circumstancesiwill not result in mcreased provisions in' the future Additionally, regulatory
examiners may require the Company to recognize addmons to the allowance based upon their JudgmentI about

Pt

‘The provisions for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $339, $230 and‘$223

respectively. See “Allowance for Loan Losses” for further discussion.

Noninterest Income. Total noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $104, or 4 34%
to $2,500 from $2,396 in 2005. Thel Company § pr1nc1pal source of noninterest mcome is Service charges and fees
on deposit accounts, particularly transaction accounts, fees on sales of mortgage loans and commissions and fees
from investment, insurance, annunty and other bank products The increase in' 2006 is primarity attnbutable’to an
increase in service charges on dep051ts accounts and COI‘I‘III'USSIOI]S on products sales Service charges on deposit
accounts increased $64 and commissions on investment product sales mcreased $46 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to 2005 § I ‘

|
Total noninterest income for the year ended December 3] 20035 increased $141, or16 25% to $2,396 from $2,255
in 2004. The increase in 2005 is primarily attributable to’ an increase in commlssmns on investment product sales
Commissions on investment product sales increased $l3l for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to
2004 resulting from the hiring of a new investment consultant in early 2005. - I l

i ! |

Noninterest Expense. Total noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, ;'006 increased $659 or 9. 20%
to $7,825 from $7,166 in 2005. The increase in nomnterest expense is attributable lo the effect of overall growth

of the Company on personnel expenses and fixed asset costs. The Company has added six new branches ancI a
12




loan production facility to its operations since June 1999 including relocating jthe Timberlake facility to a full-
service branch from an in-store facrllty in May 2006 and opening the Amherst' branch in November 2006. The
$108 increase in other expense is primarily due to a $48 increase in consultant expenses a $7 increase in costs
associated with our overdraft privilege program, an $8 increase in legal fees a $9 /increase in fees pald to
directors, and a $35 increase in indirect loan chargebacks.

Total noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $263 or 3. 84% to $7,166 from $6 901
in 2004. The increase in noninterest expense is attributable to the effect of ov:uerall growth of the Company on
personnel expenses and fixed asset costs associated with bank premises addmons The decrease in other expense
is primarily due to a $59 decrease in cost of foreclosures, a $42 decrease in consultant expenses a $96 decrease in
costs associated with our overdraft privilege program partially offset by a $41 i _mcrease in internal audit expenses
associated with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and a $37 increase in ATM network fees.

Income Tax Expense. Applicable income taxes on 2006 earnings amounted to 51, ll6 resultmg in an effective
tax rate of 31.63% compared to $876, or 29.37% in 2005. The effective tax rate for 2006 is higher primarily
because the level of tax-exempt interest income for 2006 was lower compared to 2005.

Appllcable income taxes on 2005 earnings amounted to $876, resulting 1n an effectwe tax rate of 29.37%
compared to $712, or 28.13% in 2004. The effective tax rate for 2005 is shghtly higher primarily because the
level of tax-exempt interest income for 2005 was lower compared to 2004.

Liquidity and Asset/Liability Management

Effective asset/liability management includes maintaining adequate liquidity and mjn'irrnizing the impact of future
interest rate changes on net interest income. The responsibility for momtonn'g the Company s liquidity and the
sensitivity of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities lies w1th the Asset Liability Committee of
the Bank which meets at least quarterly to review liquidity and the adequacy of fundmg $OuICes.

Cash Flows. The Company derives cash flows from its operating, investing and ﬁnancmg activities. Cash flows
of the Company are primarily used to fund loans and securities and are provided by the deposits and borrowings
of the Company.

The Company’s operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 resulted in net cash provided of
$3,218, compared to net cash provided from operating activities of $2, 7ll in 2005 The overall increase is
primarily attributable to the Company s cash received from net interest income of|$9 164, which was $1,116
higher.than the net interest received in 2005 as a result of an increase in|loan vo]ume and yield received of
$2,423. . Partially offsetting this was cash received from noninterest income in 2006 that was $34 lower than the
noninterest income amount received in 2005 and cash paid for noninterest i:xpenses of $7,935 that was $1,299
higher than 2005 primarily due to the Company’s increased personnel and ﬁx'ed asset lexpenses associated with its
continued growth. Also, the Company’s cash paid for income taxes totaled $900 in 2006 compared to $688 in
2005. Management expects any changes in the Company’s cash provided by operatmg activities to be partially
offset through continued expansion of the Company’s loan origination programs changes in deposit pricing
strategies and continued focus on improving the efficiency of the Company’s operathns

The Company’s cash flows from investing activities for the year ended December 311 2006 resulted in net cash
used of $23,135, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $18, 044 in 2005 The overall increase is
primarily attributable to a $4,788 increase in cash used to make loans to customers as the Company increased its
gross loans by 14.67%. The Company expects to continue to increase its loan portfollo in 2007. The Company
also experienced fewer paydowns and maturities of available-for-sale mortgage -backed securities due to a rising
interest rate environment in 2006. The Company expects a slightly lower volume of paydowns in available-for-

sale mortgage-backed securities in 2007 due to fewer mortgage-backed securities in the investment portfolio.
r

‘Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31,2006 resulted in net cash provided of
$20,689, compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $11,811|in 2005. The overall increase in net
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cash provided is primarily attributable to the net mcrease in deposits. The Company had success in attracting all
different types of deposits to fund the growth in the loan portfolio although the cost of the deposits increased in
2006. \ 1

The Company’s operating activities for the vear e'nded December 31, 2005tresu]ted in net cash prov1ded of
$2,711, compared to net cash provided from operatmg activities of $2,467 in 2004. The overall lncrease is
primarily attributable to the Company’s cash recewed of $2,458 from nomnter'r'ast income in 2005 and was $162
hlgher than the noninterest mcome amount received i 1n 2004. The increaselin nomnterest income recewed in 2005
is primarily attributable to hrgher commission mcome from investment product sales Additionally, the Company
received cash from net interest income of $8,048, wh1ch was $519 higher than the cash from net 1nterest received
in 2004 as a result of timing dlfferences in the payment and collection of mte'rest amounts. Partially offsettmg
this was cash paid for noninterest expenses of $6,636 that was $134 hrgher than 2004 primarily due to the
Company’s increased personnel expenses assocrated"wnth its continued growthI Also, the Company’s cash paid
for income taxes totaled $688 in 2005 compared to $9|14 in 2004.

The Company’s cash flows from investing actlvmesl‘for the year ended December 31, 2005 resulted in net cash

used of $18,044, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $10,915 in 2004. The overall increase is
[

primarily attributable to a $10, 447 increase in cash used to make loans to custonpters as the Company mcreased its

gross loans by 14.00%. The Company also expenenced fewer paydowns and maturities of avarlable-for—sale

mortgage-backed securities due to a rising interest rate environment in 2005,

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year, ended December 31, 2005 resulted in net cash provnded of
$11,811, compared to net cash provided by ﬁnancmg activities of $12,018 in 20|04 The overall decrease in net
cash provided is primarily attributable to the net decrease in ttme deposits offiet by a net increase in demand
savings and NOW deposits. The Company had contmued success in attractm;',! low cost demand, savmgs and
NOW deposits in 2005 with attractlve product offermgs such as Internet bankmg,'l bill pay and overdraft prrvrlege

Liquidity. Liquidity measures the ablhty of the Company to mecet its maiuring obligations and existing
commitments, to withstand fluctuanons in deposit levels to fund its operatron ¢l and to provide for customers
credit needs. Liquidity represents ; an institution’s ablhty to meet present and future financial obligations through
either the sale or maturity of existing assets or the |acquisition of additional 1funds from alternative funding
sources. . ‘ . |

The Company’s liquidity is provided by cash and due from banks, fedlera] funds sold, 1nvestments
available-for-sale, managing mvestment maturities, mteresl—earmng deposits in other financial mstltutlons and
loan repayments. The Company’s rano of liquid assets to deposits and short- tem1 borrowmgs was 14, 89% as of
December 31, 2006 as comparcdI to 17.62% as of December3l 2005. The (-ompany sells excess funds as
overnight federal funds sold to provide an immediate ! source of liquidity. Federalt 'funds sold as of December 31,
2006 was $8,638 as compared to $7 223 as of December 31, 2005. The increase lu federal funds sold in 2006 was
primarily relaied to the net increase in deposits and paydowns and maturitiesfof secuntres in 2006. Cash and due
from banks of $5,948 as of December 31, 2006 was $643 lower when compared tollDecember 31,2005. |

!
The level of deposits may ﬂuctuate srgmﬁcantly due to seasonal business cycles of depository customers. Levels
of deposits are also affected by convenience of branch locatrons and ATM:s to the |customer, the rates offered on
interest bearing deposits and the ‘attractiveness of nornnterest bearing deposrtl offerings compared w:th the
competition. Similarly, the level of demand for loans may vary significantly and at any given time may mcrease
or decrease substantially. However,:unlike the level of dep051ts management has miore direct control over lendmg
activities and maintains the level of those activities accordmg to the amounts of available funds. Loan demand
may be affected by the overall health of the local econd'my loan rates compared vlvnh the competition andlother
loan features offered by the Company i [

As a result of the Company’s management of liquid assets and its ability to generatle liquidity through alternative
funding sources, management believes that the Company mamtams overall llqu1d1tv that is sufficient to sansfy its
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depositors’ requirements and to meet customers’ credit needs. Additional sources of liquidity available to the
Company include its capacity to borrow funds through correspondent banks and the Federal Home Loan Bank.

The Company obtains sources of funds through growth in deposits, scheduled payments and prepayments from
the loan and investment portfolio, retained earnings growth, and may purchase or |borrow funds through the
Federal Reserve’s discount window. The Company also has sources of llquldny through three correspondent
banking relanonshlps The Company uses its funds to fund loan and mvestment growth Excess funds are sold
daily to other institutions. The Company had one borrowing with the Federal Home Loan Bank with a principal
balance of $100 with an interest rate of 6.13% as of December 31, 2006. The pr1nc1pal is reduced by $25
quarterly with final payment scheduled to be made in December of 2007.

Interest Rates

While no single measure can complelely identify the impact of changes in mterest rates on net interest income,
one gauge of interest rate sensitivity is to measure, over a variety of time penods the dlfferences in the amounts
of the Company’s rate-sensitive assets and rate-sensitive liabilities. These d;fferences or “gaps” provide an
indication of the extent to which net interest income may be affected by future ch.fnges in interest rates. A

“positive gap” exists when rate-sensitive assets exceed rate-sensitive liabilities and mdlcates that a greater volume
of assets than liabilities will reprice during a glven period. This mismatch llnay enhance earnings in a rising
interest rate environment and may inhibit earnings in a declining interest rate enwl"onment Conversely, when
rate-sensitive liabilities exceed rate-sensitive assets, referred to as a “negative gap,” lt indicates that a greater
volume of liabilities than assets will reprice during the period. In this case, a nsmg 1nterest rate environment may
inhibit earnings and a declining interest rate environment may enhance earnmgs The cumulative one- year gap as
of December 31, 2006 was $(41,160), representing 16.05% of total assets. This negative gap falls within the
parameters set by the Company. '

The following table illustrates the Company’s interest rate sensitivity gap position at De:cember 31, 2006.

1 year 1-3 years 3-5,years 5-15 vears

ASSET/(LIABILITY):
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap $ {41,160) (5,540} 12,796 34,187

As of December 31, 2006, the Company was liability-sensitive in periods from one to three years and was asset-
sensitive beyond three years. The foregoing table does not necessarily mdxcaté the 1mpact of general interest rate
movements on the Company’s net interest yield, because the repricing of. various categories of assets and
liabilities. is discretionary and is subject to competition and other pressures. As a result, various assets and
liabilities indicated as repricing within the same period may in fact price at different umes and at different rate
levels. Management attempts to mitigate the impact of changing interest rateslln several ways, one of which is to
manage its interest rate-sensitivity gap. In addition to managing its asset/hablhity posmon the Company has taken
steps to mitigate the impact of changing interest rates by generating noninterest income through service charges,
and offering products that are not interest rate-sensitive.

Effects of Inflation

The effect of changing prices on financial institutions is typically different from other industries as the
Company’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. Interest rates are 51g1|11ﬁcantl)1' impacted by inflation, but
neither the timing nor the magnitude of the changes is directly related to price level mdmes Impacts of inflation
on interest rates, loan demand and deposits are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Investment Portfolio

The Company’s investment portfolio is used primarily for investment mcnme and secondarily for liquidity
purposes. The Company invests funds not used for cap:tal expenditures or lendmg purposes in securities of the
U.S. Government and its agenc1es mortgage-backed securities, and taxable and tax-exempt mun1c1pal bonds,
corporate” securities or certificates ‘of deposit. Obhgatlons of the U.S.-Government and its agenc1es include
treasury notes and 'callable orjnoncallable agencyllbonds The mortgage- ba" :ked securities include mortgage-

backed security pools that areidiverse as to interest rates and guarantors. ']he Company has not invested in
derivatives or other high-risk type securities. ‘ |

Investment securities available- for-sale as of December 31, 2006 were $19,22 lI a decrease of $3,130 or 14.00%
from $22,351 as of December 31, 2005. lnvestment securities held-to-maturity decreased to $5,645 as of
December 31, 2006 from $6, 910 as of December 31, 2005 a decrease of $1,265 or 18.31%.

The following table presents the composition of the Company’s investment portfollos as of the dates 1nd1cated

' l | ,

Dccember i,

| 2006 1| 2005 2004
Amortized Fair A'morti"r.'ed Fair Amortized Fair
Available-for-Sale costs values costs| values costs | values
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. I ‘ :

Government corporations and agencies 3 E 4,889 4,843 3, 95-5 3.921 3,099 o3.127
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 16,033 6,025 6, 9?2 6.934 7.549 7,127
Corporate securities | 3,502 3,451 6, 0‘5 5.983 8.577 8,726
Mortgage-backed securities — government |4 908 4,852 5, 494 5461 6.653, 6,757
Other securities ‘ .50 50 £0 50 50 . 50

Total available-for-sale $ 19,382 19.221 22,506 22351 25928 26,387
T i"_ |
[
. ‘ ‘ Decernber 31, 1
2006 : 2005 2004
Amortized | Fair Armortized ' Fair Amortized , Fair
Held-to-Maturity oosts L‘. vatues costs (| values oosts values
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 5645 |1 5673 6910 | 6,982 7837 | 8,102
Total held-to-maturity $ 56451 5673 6910 || 698 7837 | 8,102

| !
!
|
|
|
R
|
I

\ t
| :
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The following table presents the maturity distribution based on fair values and amortized costs of the investment

portfolios as of the dates indicated. |

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO - MATURITY DISTRIBUTION

December 31, 2006
Amortized - Fair

Available-for-Sale Costs | ._Values Yield
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
Government corporations: ‘

Within one year $ 2,200 2,188 3.98%

After one but within five years 2,500 . 2,465 4.25%

After five years through ten years 189 189 5.01%
Obligations of states and subdivisions (1): )

Within one year

After one but within five years 4,199 4,159 4.65%

After five years through ten years 1,334 -0 1,372 4.42%

After ten years 500 494 3.40%
Corporate securities:

Within one year 1,003 993 4.61%

After one but within five years 2,499 2,458 4.32%
Morigage-backed securities — government 4,908 4,853 5.12%
Other securities (2) 50 50 —

Total available-for-sale . $ 19,382 19,221

Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states and subdivistons (1):

Within one year 1,470 1,474 5.12%

After one but within five years 3,374 . 3415 4.51%

After five years through ten years 801 . 784 4.18%

Total held-to-maturity $ 5,645 5,673

i

(1) Obligations of states and subdivisions include yiclds of tax—exempt securities presented on a tax-equivalent basis assuming a 34% U S.
Federal tax rate.

(2) Equity securities are assumed to have a life greater than ten vears.

Loan Portfolio

The Company’s net loans were $207,861 as of December 31, 2006, an mcrease of $26,593 or 14.68% from
$181,268 as of December 31, 2005. This increase resulted primarily from mcreased volume of commercial loan
originations during 2006 and loan volume from our loan production facility. The Company s ratio of net loans to
total deposits was 90.05% as of December 31, 2006 compared to 86.63% as of December 31, 2005.

!

Typically, the Company maintains a ratio of loans to deposits of between|70% and 90%. The loan portfolio
primarily consists of commercial, real estate (including real estate term loansf construcuon loans and other loans
secured by real estate), and loans to individuals for household, family and other consumer expenditures. However,
the Company adjusts its mix of lending and the terms of its loan programsraccordmg to market conditions and
other factors. The Company’s loans are typically made to businesses and mdwnduals located within the
Company’s market area, most of who have account relationships with the ’Bank There is no concentration of
loans exceeding 10% of total loans that is not disclosed in the categories presented! below The Company has not
made any loans to any foreign entities including governments, banks, businesses or 1nd1v1duals Commercial and
construction loans in the Company’s portfolio are primarily variable rate loans and have little interest rate risk.



]

The following table presents the composition of the (Fompany’s loan portfolio a:s of the dates indicated.

l. -
LOAN PORTFOLIO | , !

I
December 31, 1
) l 2005 2004 2003 2002

Real estate loans: I ! '
Residential $ l 51876 55,936 52,170 52,264 51,134
Other | 77.119 53,039 43,877 34,697 18,542

Loans to individuals for household, family and other I
consumer expenditures ‘ l 46,360 44,369 41 449 44,367 44,948
Commercial and industrial loans ' 34,036 28,659 21 h80 17,635 16,672
All other loans ' l . 454 935 492 533 146
Total loans, gross 209,345 182,938 160.4"(;38 149,496 131,442
Less unearned income and fees | (214) (162) (120) (85) (145)
Loans, net of unearned income and fees 209,631 182,776 160,’_";:}8 149,411 131,297
Less allowance for loan losses v (1,770) (1,508) (1,502) (1,528) ~ (l,298|)
Loans, net $ 1207861 181268 158.846 147 883 129,999

Commercial Loans. Commerc1alland industrial loans accoumed for 16.22% of the Company’s loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2006 compared to 15.66% as of December 31, 2005. Such loans are generally made to1prowde
operating lines of credit, to finance the purchase oft inventory or equipment, and for other business purposes.
Commercial loans are pnmanly made at rates that adjust with changes in the prevarlmg prime interest rate, are
generally made for a maximum term of five years (unless they are term loan-,) and generally requuelmterest
payments to be made monthly. The creditworthiness of these borrowers is rev1e\Itlred ana]yzed and evaluated on a
perlodlc basis. Most commercral ‘loans are collateralrzed with business assets such as accounts receivable,
inventory and equipment. Even wrth substantial collaterallzatlon such as all olf the assets of the busm‘ess and
personal guarantees, commercial lendmg involves consnderable risk of loss in the levent of a business downturn or
failure of the business. ! ‘

Real Estate Loans. Real estate loans accounted for 61 47% of the Company’s loan portfolio as of December i1,
2006 compared to 59.57% as of December 31, 2005. |T he Company makes commercial and industrial real estate
term loans that are typically secured by a first deed of: trusl As of December 31i 2006, 40.22% of the real estate
loans were secured by 1-4 fannly residential prOpertles compared to 51.33% at December 31, 2005. ‘ As of
December 31, 2006, 1.10% of total real estate loans welre construction loans: compared to 1.77% at December 31,
2005. Real estate lending mvolves risk elements when there is lack of timely payment and/or a dechne in the
value of the collateral. While it lS* difficult to predict the strength of the real estate market, management belleves
the real estate market in the Company’s market area will continue to be strong in 2‘007 !

b
Installment Loans. Installment loans are represented|by loans to individuals for household, family and other
consumer expenditures. lnstallment loans accounted1 for 22.09% of the Company s loan portfoho‘ as of
December 31, 2006 compared to 24 25% as of December 31, 2005.

Mortgage Loan Production. The mortgage loan prodlucuon department makes mortgage loans and refinances
existing mortgage loans. The production department sells these loans on the secondary market through the
Federal National Mortgage Assomatnon General Motors Acceptance Corporatrorll and other mortgage brokers
The department does not buy loans on the secondary market but services loans that are held in its loan portfollo
. and not sold in the secondary market | ;

Loan Maturity and Interest Rate §ensrnvrty The following table presents loan portfoho information related to
maturity distribution of commercial and industrial loans and real estate construcnon loans based on scheduled

repayments at December 31, 2006. - |

- ———

8



Due within Due one to Due after

one year five years five years Total
Commercial and industrial loans $ 16,041 15,501 2,494 34,036
Real estate — construction 1,406 — 14 1,420

The following table presents the interest rate sensitivity of commercial and industrial loans and real estate
construction loans maturing after one year or longer as of December 31, 2006.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Fixed interest rates $ 16,208
Variable interest rates 1,801
Total maturing after one year h) 18,009

Restructured loans. The Company had no restructured loans during the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005.

Nonperforming Assets. Interest on loans is normally accrued from the date a disbursement is made and
recognized as income as it is accrued. Generally, the Company reviews any loan on which payment has not been

“made for 90 days for potential non-accrual. The loan is examined and the collateral is reviewed to determine loss
potential. If the loan is placed on non-accrual, any prior accrued interest that remams unpald is reversed. Loans on
non-accrual amounted to $255, $421 and $189 as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Interest
income that would have been earned on non-accrual loans if they had been current in accordance with their
original terms and the recorded interest that was included in income on these|loans was not significant for 2006,
2005 or 2004. There were no commitments to lend additional funds to customers whose loans were on non-
accrual status at December 31, 2006. No foreclosed property was on hand as|of December 31, 2006. Foreclosed
property as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of one property totaling;$150.

The following tables present information with respect to the Company’s nonperforming assets and nonaccruing
loans 90 days or more past due by type as of the dates indicated.

NONPERFORMING ASSETS .
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Nonaccrual loans $ 255 ‘ 421 189
Foreclosed properties | — _ 150 - 150
Total nonperforming assets 5 1255 i 571 339

Nonperforming assets totaled $255 or 0.12% of total gross loans as of December 31, 2006, compared to $571 or
0.31% as of December 31, 2005 and $339 or 0.21% as of December 31, 2004 The following table presents the
balance of accruing loans 90 days or more past due by type as of the dates indicated.

ACCRUING LOANS 90 DAYS OR MORE
PAST DUE BY TYPE
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Loans 90 days or more past due by type:
Real estate loans 3 — 17 19
Loans to individuals 15 - 2
Commercial loans — ' 51 2
Total accruing loans 90 days or more past due  §$ 15 68 23

Allowance for Loan Losses. The Company maintains an allowance for loan|losses, which it considers adequate to
cover the risk of losses in the loan portfolio. The allowance is based upon management’s ongoing evaluation of
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the quality of the loan pOI’[fOllO total outstanding and committed loans, previous charges against the allowance
and- current and anticipated econormc conditions. The ‘allowance is also subjelcl:t to regulatory exammanons and
determinations as to adequacy, which may take into account such factors as thelmethodologv used to calcu]ate the
allowance. The Company’s management believes that as of December 31, 2006 2005 and 2004, the allowance
was adequate The amount of the provision for loan' losses is a charge agamst earmngs Actual loan ]osses are
charged agamst the al]owance for loan losses. l l !

Management evaluates the reasonableness of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis and adJusts the
provision as deemed necessary. “As of December 31 l2006 the allowance for loan losses totaled $1,770 or 0.84%
of total loans, net of unearned income and fees compared to $1,508 or 0. 83% of total loans, net of uneamed
income and fees as of December 31, 2005. The pro\nsron for loan losses for [l‘lt. years ended December 31 12006
and 2005 was $339 and $230, respectively. Net charge -offs for the Company |were $77 and $224 for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively. The ratio of net loan charge; offs during the period to average
loans outstanding for the penod was 0.04% and 0l13% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respecttvely . l ; . |

As of December 31, 2005, the allowance for loan losses totaled $1,508 or:0. 83% of total loans, net of unearned
income and fees compared to 0. 94% of total loans, nEt of unearned income andl fees and $1,502 or 0.94% as of
December 31, 2004. The provrsron for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $230,
$223, respectively. Net charge-offs for the Company' were $224 and $249 for the; years ended December %l 2005
and 2004, respectively. The ratio of net loan charge-offs during the period to average "loans outstanding for the
period was 0.13% and 0.16% for the years ended Decimber 31, 2005 and 2004, respecnvely l‘

|
The following table presents charged off loans, provisions for loan losses, recovell'res on loans previously charged

|
off, allowance adjustments and the amount of the allowance for the dates mdlcate'd

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Years ended }

! | Decemher 31, :
2006 2005 2004 _ 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of year : $ 1,508 1,502 1,§2s 1,298 11176
Loan charge-offs:
Real estate loans — other — — — —
Real estate loans -~ commercial — — @24 _ (37
Commercial and industrial loans — (66) (98) — 20)
Loans to individuals for household, family | . ;
and other consumer expenditures (206) {(314) (229) (367) (360)
Total loan charge-offs (206) (380) (351) (367) (417)
Loan recoveries: : l l l
Loans to individuals for household, family | !
and other consumer expenditures 129 156 102 127 110
Net loan charge-offs (‘7;{7) (224) (2:!}9) (240) (3]'07)
Provisions for loan losses 5 339 230 223 470 429
Balance at end of year ' $ 1,770 1,508 1,502 1,528 1,298

The primary risk element considered by management with respect to each mstallmt nt and conventional real estate
loan is lack of timely payment and the value of the collateral The primary risk elements with respect to real estate
construction loans are fluctuations i m real estate values in the Company’s m’arket lareas, inaccurate estrmates of
construction costs, fluctuations in intérest rates, the avarlablllty of conventlonal ﬁnancmg the demand for housmg
in the Company s market area and general economtc condrtrons The pnmary sk elements with respect to
commercial loans are the financial’ condition of the borrower general ‘economic |condmons in the Company s
market area, the sufficiency of collateral, the timeliness of payment and, with respect to adjustable rate loans,
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interest rate fluctuations. Management has a policy of requesting and reviewing|annual financial statements from
its commercial loan customers and periodically reviews the existence of collateral and itsjvalue. Management also
has a reporting system that monitors all past due loans and has adopted pohcnes to pursue its creditor’s rights in
order to preserve the Company’s position. [

Loans are charged against the allowance when, in management’s opinion, they are deemed uncollectible, although
the Bank continues 1o aggressively pursue collection. The Company considers|a number of factors to determine
the need for and timing of charge-offs including the following: whenever any commercial loan becomes past due
for 120 days for any scheduled principal or interest payment and there is no rec'ommenqauon to place the loan in
non-accrual status; whenever foreclosure on real estate collateral or llquldatlon[ of other! collateral does not result
in full payment of the obligation and the deficiency or some portion therleof is'.deemed uncollectible, the
uncollectible portion shall be charged-off; whenever any installment loan becomes past 'due for 120 days and has
not been placed in non-accrual status; whenever any repossessed vehicle ll{:mains unsold for 60 days after
repossession; whenever a bankruptcy notice is received on any installment loan and review of the facts results in
an assessment that all or most of the balance will not be collected, the loan w1ll be placed in non-accrual status;
whenever a bankruptcy notice is received on a small, unsecured, revolving 1nstal]mem account; and whenever any
other small, unsecured, revolving installment account becomes past due for 180 days.

Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb losses as they arise, there
can be no assurance that (i) the Company will not sustain losses in any given period whnch could be substantial in
relation to the size of the allowance for loan losses, (ii) the Company’s level of nonperfonnmg loans will not
increase, (iii) the Company will not be required to make significant additional:provisions to its allowance for loan
losses, or (lv) the level of net charge-offs will not increase and possibly exceed apphcable reserves,

The following table presents the allocation of the allowance for loan losses . as of the dates indicated.
Notwithstanding these allocations, the entire allowance for loan losses is avallable to; absorb charge-offs in any
category of loans.

Decernber 31, 2006 Decernber 31, 2005 Decermber 31, 2004 Decermber 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Percent of Percent of | Pecentof - ’ ru!mu oa Percent of
Allowance loans in each Allowance loans i each Allowance loars in each Allmarlce loans in ench Allowance koarss in ench
1
for loan category to for hoany catepory to for Joan category to for loan cxtepury to for loan catepyry to
Tosses total koans losses total loens losses total Joats lmwsJ total loars s total loans
Real estate loans:
Residential 17 8.T% 5 30.58% 2 26% n 3496% 137 RBY0%
Other m 3675% 173 BN% 107 21.3% 36 23.21% 133 14.11%
Loars o individinls
for households, family
and other comsurmer !
expendinures 02 200% 47 HU.25% 333 25.84% 333 29.68% 210 4.2
Conmrercial and
industrial loans 508 16.22% T30 15.660% 951 13.52% 27 L% 721 1268%
All other loars — 422% — 0.52% 43 061% - 0.36% — a%
Unallocaed 460 - 113 — 48 — 31 — 97 —
Totals 170 100.00% 1,508 100.00% 1,502 100.00% 528 100.00% 1,298 100.00%

While consumer related charge-offs represent a majority of total charge-offs over the Jast three years, they are of a
low dollar amount on an individual loan basis. Commercial loans on the other hand| though few in terms of the
number of charge-offs over the past two years, have the potential to greatly impact the allowance if a particular
loan defaults. The Bank’s loan review team uses the pnnc1ples of SFAS No.|5, Acco;'mtmg Jor Contingencies and
SFAS No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan an amendment of FASB Statement No. 5 and
15, vyhen degenmmng the allowance for loan losses between loan categ(')rles The determination of a loan
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category’s allowance is based on the probability ofra loan’s default and the probablhty of loss in the event of a

default.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT. K

The risk of nonpayment of loans is an inherent asplect of commercial bankmg The degree of percelved risk is
taken into account in estabhshmg the structure of, and interest rates and secunty for, specific loans and various
types of loans. The Company smves t0 minimize lts' credit risk exposure by 1ts' credit underwriting standards and
loan policies and procedures. Management contmually evaluates the credit nsks of such loans and beheves it has
provided adequately for the credrt risks associated w1lh these loans. The Company has implemented and expects
to continue to implement and update new policies and procedures to mamtam ni,' credit risk management 'systems

Bank Premises and Equipment ‘*

1
|

1)

Bank premises and equipment ‘decreased 2.64% m12006 compared to a dell,rease of 4.50% in 2005 due to
depreciation and no major expendltures on new facnlmes or facility upgrades 111 2006. The Company i is leasing

the new Timberlake and Amherst branch facilities opened in 2006,

Depaosits

7 w \
|

1

i

Average deposits were $215,859 for the year ended December 31, 2006, an mcrease of $14,421 or 7. 16% from
$201,438 of average deposits for the year ended December 31, 2005. As.of December 31, 2006, total dep051ts
were $230,817 representing an 1ncrease of $21,571 or 10 31% from $209,246 mltotal deposits as of December 31,
2005. The change in deposits dunng 2006 was pnmarrly due to changes 1n|prevrlously existing accounts and new
accounts opened as a result of relatlonshrp changes, new locations, pricing and p1 oducts offered in 2006.

For the year ended December 31, 2006 average noninterest-bearing demand deposits were $22,008 or 10 20% of
-average deposits. For the year ended December 31, k2005 average nomnterest'I bearing demand deposns were
$21,169 or 10.51% of average deposus Average lnterest-bearmg deposrts were $193,851 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, representmg an increase of §13, 582 or 7.53% over the $180 269 in average mterest-bearmg
deposits for the year ended December 31, 2005. i

| b

1

The levels of noninterest-bearing! demand deposits (1nclud1ng retail accounts) are influenced by such facl:tors as
customer service, service charges and the avallabllrty of banking services. No assurance can be given that the
Company will be able to maintain its current level of nomnterest -bearing deposrt‘a| Competition from other banks
and thrift institutions as well as money market funds, some of which offer 1nteregt raies substantially hlgher than
the Company, makes it difficult for the Company to maintain the current level of noninterest-bearing deposrts

Management continually works to implement pncmg‘Jand marketing strategies
interest-bearing deposits and to maintain a stable deposu mix.

The following table presents the Company 5 average deposits and the average,

deposits for the periods 1nd1cated

1

desrgned ta control the cost of

]

rate paid for each categ;ory of




AVERAGE DEPOSIT INFORMATION

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005 ' December 31, 2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average
amount of rate - amount of ratel amount of rate
deposits(1) paid deposits(1) paid deposits(1) paid
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 3 22,008 N/A 21,169 NIA, . 18,886 N/A
Interest-bearing demand deposits 34,436 045% 28,218 0.55% 28,695 0.52%
Savings deposits 32,230 2.77% 35,156 1.12% 33,500 0.59%
Time deposits:
Under $100,000 91,158 4.51% 86,010 3.66% 80,756 3.00%
$100,000 and over 36,027 348% 30,885 3.16% 27,052 2.60%
Total average time deposits 127,185 116,895 107,808
Total average deposits 3 215,859 201,438 188.389

(1) Averages are daily averages.

The following table presents the maturity schedule of time certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over and other

time deposits of $100,000 and over as of December 31, 2006.
TIME DEPOSITS OF $100,000 AND OVER

Certificates of  Other time
deposit deposits Total
Three months or less $ 4,420 359 4,779
Over three through six months 3,394 294 3,688
Over six through 12 months 13,264 2,742 16,006
Qver 12 months 9,846 4,739 14,585
Total time deposits of $100,000 and over h 30,924| 8.134 39,058

Financial Ratios

The following table presents certain financial ratios for the periods indicated.
RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS

Years ended
December 31,.

2006 2005 2004
Return on average assets 1.00% (;].94% ' 0.86%
Return on average equity 10.10% ?.29% , 8.33%
Dividend payout ratio 33.25% 3|3.93% 36.06%
Average equity to average assets 9.91% 10.07% 10.32%

Contractual Obligations

The Company has entered into certain contractual obligations including long;term debt and operating leases. The
table does not include deposit liabilities entered into in the ordinary course of banking. The following table

summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006!
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‘ December 31,: 2006 I‘

11. - Lessthan 1-3 3—5'I More than |
Total 1| Year  Years Yeat;s 5 Years

Federal Home Loan Bank Advanlces -$100|L $100 $ - % - $ -

Operating Leases ! 2451+ 72 104 63 1

Total | $345|1 STz S104 S68 8 1 |
Capital Resources ; '

The Company’s financial posmon at December 31, 2006 reflects liquidity and capital levels currently adequate to
fund anticipated future business expansnon Capital ra'ttos are well in excess of required regulatory rmmmums for
a “well-capitalized” institution. The assessment of capttal adequacy depends on *é number of factors such as asset
quality, liquidity, earnings performance and changmg competmve conditions and economic forces The adequacy
of the Company’s capital is revrewed by management on an ongoing basis. l\ifllanagement seeks to mamtam a
capital structure that will assure an adequate level of; capital to support ant1c1pated asset growth and to absorb
potential losses.

]
1

The Company s capital position contmues to exceed regulatory requirements. The primary indicators relleid on by
bank regulators in measuring the capital position are the Tier I capital, total rlsk-based capttal‘ and leverage ratios.
Tier I capital consists generally of common and qualtfymg preferred stockholders equrty less goodw11] Total
capital generally consists of Tier tI cap1tal qualifying subordmated debt and a pOl'[lOﬂ of the allowance for loan
"losses. Risk-based capital ratios are calculated w1th reference to nsk—wetghtedl assets. The Company’ s Tier |
capital ratio was 9.92% at December 31, 2006 and lO 54% at December 31, 2005 The total capital rauo was
' 10.64% at December 31, 2006- and 11 23% at December 31, 2005. . l _

l |
These ratios exceed the mandated nummum requrrements of 4% and 8%, respecttvely As of December 31, 2006
and 2005, the Company met all regulatory capital ratio requirements and was c‘ ‘onsidered “well capltalllzed” in
accordance with FDICIA. : '“ : t

Stockholders’ equity reached $24; 492 at December 31 2006 compared to $23, ’12 at Decernber 31, 2005. The
leverage ratio consists of Tier 1 capital divided byl quarterly average asset-1 At December 31, 2006 “the
Company’s leverage ratio was 9. 80% compared to 9, 88% at December 31, 2005. Each of. these exceeds the
required minimum leverage ratio of 4%. The dtwdendl payout ratio was 33. 25%Iand 33.93%'in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. During 2006, the Company paid dwtdendT of $0.55 per share, up. 12 24% from $0.49 per share pald
in 2005. |

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements’ |
|
The Company did not use any financial derivatives during 2006 and 2005. I-]owever the Company has off-

balance sheet arrangements. that may have a material jeffect. on the results of pperattons in the futuret The
Company, in the normal course of business, may at umes be a party to ﬁnancnl instruments such as standby
letters of credit. Standby letters of credlt as of December 31 2006 equaled $2, 0. l4 compared with $1,684 as ‘of
December 31, 2005. Other comrmtments include comrmtments to lend money. Not all these comrmtments will
be acted upon; therefore the cash requlrements will ltkely be significantly less than the comrmtments themselves
‘As of December 31, 2006, the Company had unused loan comrrutments of $60 883 including $50,393 in unused
'commitments with an original maturtty ‘exceeding one year compared with $51, 785 including $42 096 in upused

]

24 |



;

commitments with an original maturity exceeding one year as of December 31,12005. . See Note 9 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements.
|

Critical Accounting Policies

The reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with U.S. genera]ly accepted accounting principles.
Certain critical accounting polrcres affect the more significant judgments and esumates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. The Company’s single most critical accountmg policy relates to the
Company’s allowance for loan losses, which reflects the: estimated losses resulnng from the inability of the
Company’s borrowers to make required loan payments. If the financial condlnon of the Company’s borrowers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments the Company s estimates would
be updated, and additional provisions for loan losses may be required. Further dlscussmn of the estimates used in
determining the allowance for loan losses is contained in the discussion on “Allowance for Loan Losses” on page
19 and “Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses” in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards N

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) lssued Statement of Financial
“Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid F inancial [nstruments an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. This Statement amends SFAS Nol 133, Accountmg for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Tralmfers rand Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities and resolves issues in Statement No. l 133 Impllementanon Issue No. D1,

Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets The provisions of this
Statement are effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the begmnmg of an entity’s first fiscal
year that begins after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155[is not expected to have a material

impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. .

In March'2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of 'F. manczal Assets, an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 140. This Statement amends SFAS' No. 140, Accounrmg for, Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a replacement of FASB, Statement 125 with respect to the
accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and servicing llabllltles The ,provrslons of this Statement
are effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The adoptlon of SFAS No. 156 is not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company I

|
In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Dfrzﬁned Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 106, "a.-'td 132(R). SFAS No. 158
and its impact on the Company are discussed in Note 1(k) of the Notes to Consohdatpd Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements whrch establishes a framework
for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounnng principles and expands drsclosmes 'about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. SFAS No. 157
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning af[er November 15, 2007, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect the adopnon of; thls new standard to have a
material effect on the Company s consolidated results of operations or consolidated ﬁnanc1al position.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accountmg; | for Uncermmty in Income
Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, which establishes that the ﬁnancnal statement effects of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return are to be recognized fint the ﬁnanmal statements when it is
more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the position will be sustamed upon examination. FIN 48
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
new standard to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results 01 operauons or consolidated
financial position.
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Quantitative and Qualitative I?isclosures About I\/%arket Risk

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT I\ s '.

Market risk reflects the risk of econormc loss resultmg from changes in 1nterest rates and market prlces If the
Bank is to achieve its financial goals it must effecuvely manage this risk.

|
The primary market risk for a bank is interest rate nsk and its impact on net! interest income. This exposure

:

results from differences between the amounts of mterest earning assets and 1nte‘rest bearing liabilities that reprice
within a specified time penod as a result of schedulled maturities and repayrnent and contractual mterest rate
changes.

1

I

|

The Bank’s Asset/Liability Management Committee and the Investment Committee are primarily respon51ble for
establishing strategies to momtor and control hquldlty and interest rate risk. lThe primary goal for rr:lanaglng
interest rate volatility is to maximize net interest income while ensuring liquidity and managing interest rate risk
within established guidelines. The Bank uses statlcl gap analysis, earnings s:mulatlon analysis and economic
value of equity (net present value estimation) to momtor interest rate risk. Each of these models measure‘changes
in a variety of interest rate scenarlos While each of the interest rate nsk measures have limitations, taken
together, management believes that they represent a reasonably comprehenswe view of the magnitude of interest

‘rate risk in the Company, the dtsmbutlon of risk along the yield curve, the teVel of risk through time, ‘and the

amount of exposure to changes in certain 1nteresl]rate relationships. Statu'; gap analysis, which measures
aggregate repricings, is less utlhzed since it does not|effect|vely measure the e;armngs impact on the Company
and, therefore, a static gap analysns is not presentedlhere However, eam1ngs|51mulatlon and econonnc value
models that more effectively mealsure the earnings impact and are utilized by management on a regular ba51s are
explained below. . ‘

EARNINGS SIMULATION ANALYSIS. |

Management uses carnings simulation analysis to measure interest rate sens:tlvuy and its 1mpact on future
earnings. The simulation uses current balance sheet lvolumes growth, reprlcmg'rs changes in mix of assets and
liabilities, prepayments and average rate paid and earned assumptions to pl‘O_]CC[ income under multiple mterest
rate scenarios. The model assumes changes in interest rates without any managc ment intervention to change the
composition of the balance sheet “The analysis showsI the effects of a hypothelllcal change in expected {nterest

rates as of December 31, 2006 and the results of this ch‘ange over a | year time penod

l I
The followmg table represents the interest rate sensitivity on net income for the Company using dlfferent rate
scenarios as of December 31, 2006. |

| |

Hypothetical
Change in Prime Rate % Change in Net Income
+300 basis points +15%
+200 basis points +10% |
+100 basis points +5% |
Level -0 !
-100 basis points -8% !
-200 basis points -17% | . :
-300 basis points -26% 5 ' '
!
|

ECONOMIC VALUE OF EQUITY SIMULATION.

| [
Economic value of equity simulation is used to calculate the estimated fair value of .assets and liabilities in
different interest rate environments. Economic values are calculated based on dlscounted cash flow analysns The
economic value of equity is the economlc value of alliassets minus the economtc value of all 11ab111t1es The
change in economic value of equ1ty over different rate env1ronments is an 1ndlcat10n of the longer term repncmg
risk in the balance sheet. The same assumptions are used in the economic valué;of equity simulation as‘in the
earnings simulation. : | b
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: 1
The following chart reflects the change in the net market value by using December 31, 2006 data, over different
rate environments with a one-year horizon.

Hypothetical
Change in Economic Value of Equity
Change in Pnme Rate (dollars in thousands)

+300 basis points - $2,561
+200 basis points -$1,600
+100 basis points -$ 749
level 0
-100 basis points $885
-200 basis points $1,656
-300 basis points $2,445

There have been no material changes in quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk since this
information was developed using December 31, 2006 data.

The Bank cannot predict future interest rates or their exact effect on net interest income. Certain limitations are
inherent in any analysis. There is no guarantee that the risk management and balance sheet strategies
management employs will be effective in periods of rapld rate movements. Furthermore, these analyses do not
reflect actions management might take in response to or in anticipation of changes in interest rates.
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PINNA|CLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION AND SUB SIDIARY

1

'CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 11
December,31 2006 and 2005 '
(In thousands of dollars except share data)

Assets

\
|
|
& .
|
!

2006 2005
i !
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2): .
Cash and due from banks . 1 $ 5948 3 6,591
Federal funds sold i 8,638 . 7,223
| -
Total cash and cash equivalents 1 14,586 ' 13,814
Securities (note 3): _ "
Available-for-sale, at fair value ' 19,221 22,351
Held-to-maturity, at amomzed cost | 5,645 : 6,910
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost (note 1(c)) - 75 ! 75
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost (note 1(c)) N ‘ 481 | -:454
Loans, net (notes 4, 9 and 10) . l ‘ 207,861 1i81,268
Bank premises and equipment, net (note 5) i 5,264 i 5,407
Accrued interest receivable . | 1,250 | 1,075
Other assets (notes 7, 8 and 15) l 2,038 12,136
1 !
Total assets '\ $ . 256,421 § 233,490
Liabilities and Stockholders' eql‘li.ty |
Liabilities: !
Deposits (note 6): L
Demand L $ 23,631 $ 21,914
Savings and NOW accounts | _ 69,798 64,661
Time | ¢ 137,388 122,671
Total deposits | . H 230,817 209,246
1: |
Note payable to Federal Home Loan Bank {note 1(c}) 100 200
Accrued interest payable | 764 1 601
Other liabiiities (note 7) g 248 231
| _
Total liabilities ‘ ‘I 231,929 210,278
Stockholders' equity (notes 11 and 14); % _
Common stock, $3 par value. Authorized 3,000 000 shares, ,
issued and outstandlng 1,459,589 shares in 2006 and '
1,458,706 shares in 2005 4,379 4,376
Capital surplus < | 605 577
Retained earnings 1 19,972 18,362
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ioss) net v (464) {103}
Total stockholders' equity \ ! 24,492 231212
Commitments, contingencies and other matters (notes 9, 10,and 11) !
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ . 2564218 233,490

!
I ]
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

28




PINNACLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY - )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years énded December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{In thousands of dollars, except per share data)

2006 2005

2004
I
Interest income: ‘ .
Interest and fees on loans $ 13,979 § '10,847 & 8,991
Intarest on securities: : i
U.S. Govemment agencies 469 455 494
Corporate 215 401 504
States and political subdivisions (taxable) 272 292 303
States and political subdivisions (tax exempt) 277 382 448
Cther 37 30 27
Interest on federal funds sold 368 263 135
Total interest income 15,617 12,670 10,902
Interest expense: '
Interest on deposits: '
Savings and NOW accounts 1,048 549 346
Time - under $100,000 4,113 3,144 2,430
Time - $100,000 and over 1,254 975 704
Other interest expense 10 | 18 22
Total interest expense 6,425 4,687 3,502
Net interest income 9,192 7,983 7,400
I
Provision for loan losses (note 4) 339 230 223
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 8,853 7,753 7177
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,357 1,293 1,286
Net realized gain on securities (note 3) - 2 34
Commissions and fees 378 332 176
Fees on sales of mortgage loans 234 265 273
Service charges on loan accounts 254 218 174
Other operating income 277 286 312
Total neninterest income 2,500 2,396 2,265
‘Noninterest expense: ‘
Salaries and employee benefits (note 7) 4,540 4,134 3,854
QOccupancy expense 429 380 348
Fumiture and equipment 784 739 839
Office supplies and printing 212 ' 178 189
Capital stock tax 181 180 175
Advertising expense 121 ' 105 133
Other cperating expenses 1,558 1,450 1,563
Total noninterest expense 7,825 7,166 6,901
Income before income tax expense 3,528 2,883 2,531
Income tax expense (note 8) 1,116 876 712
Net income $ 2412 § 2,107 $ 1,819
Basic net income per share (note 1(p)) $ 165 $ 144 § 1.25
Diluted net income per share (notel(p}) $ 1.64 § 1.43 § 1.23

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE BANKSHAFIES1CORP0F|ATION AND SUBSIDIAHY
Consolrdated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Comprehenswe Income
Years ended December131 2006, 2005 and 2004

{In thousands, except share and per share data) "

Balances, December 31, 2003
Net income
Change in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities, net of deferred taxes of $201
Reclassification adjustment for gains included !
in net income, net of income tax expense of $12
Comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared by
Bankshares ($0.45 per sharc)
Balances, December 31, 2004
Net income
Change in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale .
securities, net of deferred taxes of $208
Comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared by
Bankshares ($0.49 per share)
Issuance of common stock, stock option exercise
Balances, December 31, 2005
Net income
Change in ret unrealized gains on available-for-sale
securities, net of deferred taxes of $2
Adjustment to initially apply FASB
Statement No. 158, net of tax of $183
Comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared by
Bankshares ($0.55 per share)
Issuance of common stock
Stock option expense
Balances, December 31, 2006

Set accompanying notes 1o consolidaied financial statements.

v

Accurmnulated
, Other
Comimon Stock Capital Retained . Comprehensive
Shares Poar ¥alue  Surplus Eamings || Income (Loss) Total
1457406 $10 43712 $ 562 § 15807 $ 694 5 21435
— —_ — 1,819 l —_ 1819
— ‘ — — - (369) (369
- | - — — 22) 22
| : 1,428
_ — — (656) 1 — (656)
1457406 $ 1. 43712 § 562§ 16970 S 303 0§ 22207
— [J— — 2107 Y — 2,107
| ‘
- b= — — (406) (406)
| 1,701
I .
_ b — ms — (715)
130 | 4 15 — — 19
1458706 5 | 4376 § 577§ 18362 § (103 $ 23212
— p— — 2412 ! — 2412
— [ —_ —_ “@ [C)]
f 357 (357)
| 2,051
|
— ‘i -_ — (802) — (802)
883 3 19 — ; — 22
| 9 . 9
1,459,569 $ [ 4379 § 605 $ 19972, §i. (464) § 2449
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PINNACLE BANKSHAR:ES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{In thousands of dollars)

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2412 § 2107 $ 1,819
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation of bank premises and equipment 435 473 440
Amortization of intangible assets 3 11 12
Accretion (amortization) of unearned fees, net (53) 45 32
Net amortization of premiums and
discounts on securities 12 30 60
Provision for loan losses 339 230 223
Provision for deferred income taxes 161 184 43
Accrual of stock option vesting g - -
Originations of mortgage icans held for sale (9,751) {13,552} {1,604)
Sales of mortgage loans held for sale 10,208 13,095 1,657
Net realized gain on securities - {2) (34)
Net decrease (increase) in:
Accrued income receivable (175} (129) (3B)
Other assets {22) 54 (166)
Net increase (decrease) in:
Accrued interest payable 188 119 75
Other liabilities (548) 46 (52)
Net cash provided by operating aclivities 3,218 2,711 2,467
Cash flows trom investing activities:
Purchases of held-to maturity securities - (500) {301)
Purchases of available-for sale securities (1,503} {2,989) (1,604)
Purchases of available-for sale-mortgage backed securities (500) (525) (2,881)
Proceeds from maturities and calls of held-to-maturity securities 1,265 1,427 2282
Proceeds from maturities and calls of available-for-sale securities 4,044 5,248 2,203
Proceeds from paydowns and maturilies of available-for-sale
mortgage-backed securities 1,074 1,660 2,566
Sale (purchase) of Federal Home Loan Bank stock (27) 27) 171
Collections on loan participations 493 751 1,108
Net increase in loans made to customers (27,815) (23,027) {12,580)
Recoveries on leans charged off 129 156 102
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (292) {218} {1,981)
Net cash used in investing activities {23,135} {18,044) {10,915)

Continued
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. iﬁINNACLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

’ CONSOLIDATED{STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 "
{In thousands of dollars)

2006

2005 2004.
Cash flows from financing activities: 1
Net increase in demand, savmgs and NOW deposits 6,854 " 7.002 237
Net increase in time deposlls ' | 14, 717 5,605 12,537
Repayments of note payable to' Federal Home Loan Bank (100) ! {100) {100}
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ‘ 20 ? 19 L
Cash dividends paid 1 (802). (715} {656)
Net cash provided by financing activities l 20,689 | 11,811 12,018
’ 1 11 N
i 1
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 77e . {3.522) 3,570
: I . '
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of period T 13,814 . 17,336 13,766
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period | $ 14,586 |$ 13,814 § 17,336
H !
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information ‘ ‘
Cash paid during the year for: !
Income taxes ! $ 900 ;$ 688 $ ‘914
Interest | 6237 4,568 3,427
. |
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and ‘
financing activities: |
Transfer of loans to repossessed properties $ 81 '$ 120 $ 254
Loans charged against the allowance for loan losses 208 380 , 351
Unrealized gains (Iosses) on avallable-for-sale securmes ® (614) {592}
Adjustment to initially adopt FASB Statement No. 15? (540) - - b

See accompanying notes to consohdgted financial statements.
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PINNACLE BANKSI—IARES CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except ratios, share and per share data)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices

Pinnacle Bankshares Corporation, a Virginia corporation (Bankshares), was organized in 1997 and is
registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended.
Bankshares is headquartered in Altavista, Virginia. Bankshares conducts all of its -business activities
through the branch offices of its wholly owned subsidiary bank, The First National Bank of Altavista (the
Bank). Bankshares exists primarily for the purpose of holding the stock of its subsidiary, the Bank, and of
such other subsidiaries as it may acquire or establish. The Company has a single reportable segment for
purposes of segment reporting.

The accounting and reporting policies of Bankshares and its wholly owned subsidiary (collectively, the
Company), conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
general practices within the banking industry. The following is a summary of the more significant
accounting policies and practices:

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Bankshares Corporation and
its wholly owned subsidiary. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

{b) Securities

The Bank classifies its securities in three categories: (1) debt securities that the Bank has the positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held-to-maturity securities” and reported at
amortized cost; (2) debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of
selling them in the near term are classified as “trading securities” and reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses included in net income; and (3) debt and equity securities not classified as
either held-to-maturity securities or trading securities are classified as “available-for-sale securities”
and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from net income and reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income, a separate component of stockholders’” equity. Fair value
is determined from quoted prices obtained from FT (Financial Times) Interactive Data in cooperation
with Compass Bank, our third—party bond accountant. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at cost,
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on a basis, which approximates the
level yield method. The Bank does not maintain trading securities. Gains or losses on disposition are
based on the net proceeds and adjusted carrying values of the securities called or sold, using the
specific identification method on a trade date basis. If a decline below cost in the market value of any
available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security is deemed other than temporary, the decline is charged
to net income, resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security.

(¢} Required Investments and Note Payable to FHLB

As a member of the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) and the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of
Atlanta, the Bank is required to maintain certain minimum investments in the common stock of the
FRB and FHLB, which are carried at cost. Required levels of investment are based upon the Bank’s
capital and a percentage of qualifying assets.

In addition, the Bank is eligible to borrow from the FHLB with borrowings collateralized by
qualifying assets, primarily residential mortgage loans, and the Bank’s capital stock investment in the
FHLB. At December 31, 2006, the Bank’s available borrowing limit was approximately $33,311. The
Bank had $100 and $200 in borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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(d}

(e)

The note payable to the FHLB, due in December 2007, is payablelin annual installments of $100 and

bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.13%. ‘1
1
Mortgage Loans Held for Sale
Mortgage loans originated and 1ntended for sale in the secondaryI market are carried at the lower of
cost or estimated market value.,

Pursuant to an agreement with the Federal National MortgagelAssocrauon (FNMA), dunng the
second quarter of 2003 the Company began a program to originate mortgage loans for sale to
FNMA. At December 31, 2006 and! 2005, the Company had no originated loans that were
subsequently sold to FNMA. ‘ S |

Pursuant to an agreement with the Ge‘neral Motors Acceptance |Corporatron (GMAC), during the
second quarter of 2005, the Companyi began a program to orrgmate mortgage loans for sale to
GMAC. At December 31, 2006, the Company had no originated loans that were subsequently sold to
GMAC, At December 31, 2005, the Company had originated loans of $457 that were subsequently
sold to GMAC. !

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses 1

Loans are stated at the amount of unpard principal, reduced by uneamed income and fees on loans,
and an allowance for loan losses. Income!is recognized over the terms of the loans using methods that
approximate the level yield method. Thelallowance for loan losses 1s a valuation allowance consisting
of the cumulative effect of the provtsron for loan losses, plus any amounts recovered 'on loans
prevrously charged off minus loans charged off. The provision for. loan losses charged to operating
expenses is the amount necessary in management $ Judgment to Imamtam the allowancelfor loan
losses at a level 1t believes sufﬁ(:lentl to cover losses in' the co]lectlon of the Bank's loans.
Management determrnes the adequacy of the allowance based upon reviews of mdmdual credits,
recent loss experience, delinquencies, ourrent economic condttlons the risk characteristics of the
various categories of loans and other pertinent factors. Loans’ are c,harged agamst the al]owance for
loan losses” when mariagement beheves the collectibility of the principal is unhkely While
management uses avarlable mformatton to recognize losses orl loans, future addttrons to the
allowance for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in & conormc conditions. In addmon
various regulatory agencres as an 1ntegral part’ of their exammatronI process, periodically review the
Bank's allowance for loan losses. Such' agencres may require the Bank to recognize addrtrons to the
allowance for loan losses based on their Judgments about mformatron avarlable to them at the time of
their examinations. ' I l
! |

Loans are charged jagainst the allowance when, in management s opinion, they are ldeemed
uncollectible, although the Bank contmues to aggressively pursue collectron The Company considers

.a number of factors/to determine the need for and timing of chat ge-offs including the followmg

whenever any commercial transaction becomes ‘past due for 120 days for any scheduled prmcrpal or
interest payment andlcollectron is consrdered unlikely; whenever foreclosure on real estate collateral
or liquidation of other collateral does not: resu]t in full payment of thc obligation and the def'tcnency or
some portion thereof is deemed uncollecttble the uncollectrblc portion shall be charged-off;
whenever any msta]lment loan becomes past due for 120 days and collectron is considered unlikely;
whenever a bankruptcy notice is received on any installment loan and review of the facts results in an
assessment that all or most of the balance ;\‘mll not be collected, the loian will be placed in non'accruaj
status; whenever a bankruptcy notice is received on a small, unsecured revolvmg mstallment

. 11
account; and whenever any other small, unsecured revolving 1nstallment account becomes past due

for 180 days. ‘

Interest related to non-accrual loans 1s recognrzed on the cash basis. Loans are generally placed in

non-accrual status when the collection of pnn01pal and interest is 90 days or more past due, unless the

obligation relates to a consumer or residential real estate loan or ts both well-secured and in the
process of collection. l
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Impaired loans are required to be presented in the financial statements at the present value of the
expected future cash flows or at the fair value of the loan’s collateral. Homogeneous loans such as
real estate mortgage loans, 1nd1v1dua1 consumer loans, home equity loans and bankcard loans are
evaluated collectively for impairment. Management, considering current information and events
regarding the borrowers ability to repay their obligations, considers a loan to be impaired when it is
probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the loan agreement. Impairment losses are included in the allowance for loan losses through a charge
to the provision for loan losses. Cash receipts on impaired loans receivable are applied first to reduce
interest on such loans to the extent of interest contractually due and any remaining amounts are
applied to principal. '

Loan Origination and Commitment F ees and Certain Related Direct Costs

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs charged by the Bank
are deferred and the net amount amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield. The Bank
amortizes these net amounts over the contractual life of the related loans or, in the case of demand
loans, over the estimated life. Net fees related to standby letters of credit are recognized over the
commitment period.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed by the straight-line and déclining-balance methods over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Depreciable lives include 15 years for land improvements, 40 years for buildings, and 3 to 7
years for equipment, furniture and!fixtures. The cost of assets retired and sold and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are
included in determining net income. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
as incurred, and improvements and betterments are capitalized.

Foreclosed Properties

Foreclosed properties consist of properties acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of
foreclosure. These properties are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell.
Losses from the acquisition of property in full or partial satisfaction of loans are charged against the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequent write-downs, if any, are charged to expense Gains and losses
on the sales of foreclosed properties are included in determining net income in the year of the sale.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which requires that long-lived
assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in curcumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverablhty of assets to be held and used,
such as bank premises and equipment, is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of, such as
foreclosed properties, are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Test for Impairment of Investinent in Bankers Investments Group, LLC

The Bank’s investment of $219 in Bankers Investments Group, LLC as of December 31, 2006 has
been evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment. The impairment test evaluated the
performance, the liquidity and future cash flows of Bankers Investments Group, LLC. Management
has determined the investment impairment is of a temporary nature and is carrying the investment at
its cost as of December 31, 2006. Management will continue to evaluate the asset for impairment in
future periods.
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Pension Plan 1

" The Bank mamtamls a noncontributory, deﬁned benefit pensron plan whrch covers substantially all of

_its employees. The net periodic pensmn expense includes a servrce cost component, interest on the

projected benefit oblrgatron a component reﬂectmg the actual return on plan assets, the effect of
deferring and amomzmg certain actuanal gains and losses, and th:,I amortization of any unrecogmzed
net transition obligation on a strarght line basis over the: average remaining service penod of
employees expected to receive benefits lunder the plan, Thé Bank’ s funding policy is to make annual
contributions in amounts necessary to satisfy the Internal RevenueIServrce s funding standards and to
the extent that they are tax deductible. '

In September 2006 the FASB issued- SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other: Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, ‘106 and
132(R), which requrres a business entlty to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a
single-employer deﬁned benefit postretlrement plan as an asseit or lability in its statement of
financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in comprehenswe income in the year
in which the changes occur. SFAS No! 158 also requires a- ‘business entity to measure the funded
status of a plan as of the date of its year'—end statement of ﬁnanmaﬂ !posmon with limited exceptrons

SFAS 158 was adopted by the Bank’begmnmg with the year rnded December 31, 2006 The

incremental effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 is as follows:
' Before After
Applrcatlon of : Application of
SFAS No. 158 Adjustments SFAS No. 158 |
Other assets | 5 1855 § 183 3 2,038
Total assets | 256,238 183 | 256,421
Other liabilities ; (292) 540 248
Total Liabilities | l 231,389 540 231,929
Accumulated other \
comprehensive ir'tcpme (loss) f (107) (357) (464)
Total stockholders' equity $ | 24,849 S 1357 8 24,492
i :
|
Adbvertising _ !

| I
The Bank expenses advertising expenses as incurred.

Income Taxes | i
Income taxes are accounted for under the llsset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recogmzed for the future tax consequences attnbutable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of exrstmg assets and lrabrhtles and-their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to' taxable income in the yc ars in'which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deft,rred tax assets and liabilities of

a change in tax rates is recognized in net mcome in the period that mclludes the enactment date. |
|

Stock Options

Stock Based Compensanon - In October|l995 the FASB issued E-FAS No. 123, Accoummg for
Stock-Based Compensation, which encouragcd companies to recoomze expense for stock-based
awards based on their estimated value on‘the date of grant. SFAS 123 permitted compames to
account for stock-based compensation based on provisions prescrrbed\| in SFAS 123, or based on the
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authoritative guidance in Accountmgl Prmc:ples Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees. The Company elected to account for its stock-based compensation in
accordance with APB 25, which used the intrinsic value method; however, as required by SFAS 123,
the Company disclosed the pro forma, impact on the financial statements assurrung the measurement
provisions of SFAS 123 had been adopted.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Shared-Based Payment (SFAS 123R). SFAS
123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123 Accounting for Stock Based Compen.sanon supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25 and amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. SFAS 123R
eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation using APB Opinion No. 25 and
requires that all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to
be recognized as compensation in the financial statements using a fair value-based method. SFAS
123R is effective for nonpublic companies as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that
begins after December 15, 2005. SFAS 123R was adopted by the Bank beginning with the year
ended December 31, 2006.

SFAS 123R requires public companies to adopt the recognition requirements using either a “modified
prospective” method or a “modified retrospective” method. Under the “modified prospective”
method, compensation cost is recognized in the financial statements beginning with the effective
date, based on the requirements of SFAS 123R for all shared-based payments granted after that date,
and based on the requirements of SFAS 123R for all unvested awards granted prior to the effective
date of SFAS 123R. Under the “modified retrospective” method, the' requirements are the same as
under the “modified prospective” method, but also permits entities to restate financial statements of
previous periods based on pro formadisclosures made in accordance with SFAS 123.

The Company adopted SFAS 123R under the “modified prospective” method effective January 1,

2006. The Company has begun to récognize compensation expense for optlons that have been issued
but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006. In addition, options issued after January 1, 2006 will
increase compensation expense for 2006 and afterward. Options that were issued prior to January 1,

2006 and vested during the year resulted in additional compensation expense of $6,000. There were
no options granted in 2006. Future levels of compensation cost recognized related to share-based
compensation awards may be impacted by new awards and/or modification, repurchases and
cancellations of existing awards after the adoption of this standard.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to options granted under the Company’s
stock option plan. For the purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of the options is estimated
using a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and amortized to expense over the options’ vesting
periods.

2005 2004

Net income, as reported |
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation 2,107 1,819

expense determined urkder SFAS No. 123, net

of related tax effects 9 . (9

Pro forma net income $ 2,098 1,810

Bastic net income per share: - i

As reported 3 1.44 1.25

Pro forma 1.44 1.24
Diluted net income per share:

As reported b 143 1.23

Pro forma 142 1.23
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I
The fair value of each option grant is cstlmated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following wclghtcd average assumptlons used; dmdend yield of 4.00%,
expected volatility of 27.30%, a rlsk-free interest rate of 4.63%, and expected lives of 7 years.

Net Income Per Share !

Basic net income per share excludes 'dilution and is computed by dividing income available to
common stockholdcrs by the weighted-ayerage number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted net income per share reflects, the potential dilution that 1could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were; exerc1sed or converted 1nto common stock or resulted in the

issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the C?mpany

The following is a rcconcnhauon of thel numerators and dcnorrunators of the basic and diluted net

income per share computanons for the pcrlods mdlcated ‘

Per share

l Net income | Shares
Year ended December 31, 2006 ‘ {numerator) (denommator) amount
Basic net income per share $| 2412 \ 11 1,459,007 i 1.65
Effect of dilutive stock options I — i 12,799 [
Diluted net income per share $ 2413 n.471.806 _ $ _1.64
| [ |
Net income Shares. Per sh'\are
Year ended December 31, 2005 (numerator) (denominator) amount
Basic net income per share $|: 2107 ll4sseis s 1.4
Effect of dilutive stock options | — — 17,673 ;
Diluted net income per share 3| 2107 lhaze, 288 S | 1.43
| . '

: \ Net income §hares Per share
Year ended December 31, 2004 i __(numerator) (denominator) amount
Basic net income per share $ ‘; 1,819 'l 457406 $ .25
Effect of dilutive stock options ! — | 16,036 |
Diluted net income per share $ 1 1,819 1473442 $ 11.23

[

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consohdatcd statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, amounts due from banks (with ongmal maturities of three momhs or less), and federal funds

sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day penods

Comprehensive Income

|

|
|

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive’ 1Income requires the Company to classify items of LOther
Comprehensive Income” (such as net unrcallzcd gains (losses) on avallable for-sale securltlcs) by
their nature in a financial statement and present the accumulated balance of other comprchcnswe
income separately from retained earnings and additional pald-m capltal in the equity secuon of a
statement of financial rposmon The Company s other comprehenswe]mcome consists of net income
and net unrealized gams (losses) on secuntlcs available-for-sale, net of income taxes.

SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Deﬁned Benefit Pension a;lzd Other Postretirement Plans -
an amendment of FASB Statements No, 87 88, 106, and 132(R)! requires a business cnmy to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a single-employer|defined benefit postretlremcm
plan as an asset or liability in its stalement of financial posmon and to recognize changes in that

funded status in comprchcnswe income in Thc year in which the changes occur. SFAS No. 158 also
4
| |

38 i |
|



(r)

(s)

o

. ]

requires a business entity to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end
statement of financial position, with limited exceptions.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the dates of the consolidated balance sheets and
revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant changes
in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 155, Aeccounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. This Statement amends SFAS No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 140, Accounting
Jor Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities and resolves
issues in Starement No. 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, Applicarion of Statement 133 to Beneficial
Interests in Securitized Financial Assets. The provisions of this Statement are effective for all
financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins
after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 is not expected to have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. This Statement amends SFAS No. 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Fmanczal Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a replacement of
FASB Statement 125 with respect to the accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and
servicing liabilities. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 156 is not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R). SFAS No. 158 and its impact on the Company are discussed in Note 1{k) of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this new standard to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial position.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, which establishes that the financial
statement effects of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return are to be recognized in
the financial statements when it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the
position will be sustained upon examination. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company does not expect the adoption of this new standard to have a
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. material effect 01’} the Company’s consolidated results of op;erations or consolidated financial

position. Co

Restrictions on Cash

|
To comply with Federal Reserve regulation

!

I ' . . 1 . | .
s, the Bank is required to maintain certain average reserve

balances. The daily aver'lage reserve require;m:ents were approximately [$1,304, and $1,349 for the weeks
including December 31, 2006 and 2005, respv;"qti_ve]y.

Securities

The amortized costs, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses

|

December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows: .

Available-for-Sale |
U.S. Treasury secunities and obligations of

U.S. Government corpotations and agencies
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Corporate securities 1
Mortgage-backed securities — government
Other securities '

Total available-for-sale

Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states and political subdivisions

Available-for-Sale

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. Government corporations and agencies
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Corporate securities '
Mortgage-backed securities — government
Other securities

Total available-for-sale

Held-to-Maturity .
Obligations of states and political subdivisions

and fair values for securities at

2006
Gross Gross
|  Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
| costs gains|! ‘losses values
L$ 4,889 Illl @mn 4,843
| 6,033 74 (82) 6,025
| 3,502 - (51) 3451
4,908 27 (83) 4,852
| 50 - — 50
$ 19,382 102 (263) 19,221
| t -
1
)
' 1 2006 ‘
1 Gross || Gross '
| Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
| costs gains losses values
‘35 - 5645 ) (42) 5,673
1 | 1
' i
l 12005
Gross i Gross
| Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
, €osts gains 1 losses values
{ : .
h) 3,985 3 (67) 3,92t
| 6,922 97, (85) 6,934
\ 6,055 8 8) 5,985
| 5,494 54 (37 5,461
!L 50 —I — 50
$ 22,506 162l . 317 22,351
| 1 \
| | ,
; 12005 .
Gross ! Gross !
| Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
| costs gains losses values
] 6,910 12511 (53) 6,982
= .
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The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company’s investments,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous

unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2006

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
! Gross Gross Gross
Fair ' unrealized  Fair  unrealized = Fair  Unrealized
Description of Securities value losses value losses value losses
11.S. Treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. Government corporations
and agencies $ 999 1 3.654 46 4,653 47
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 631 1 5119 123 5,750 124
Corporate securities — — 3,451 51 3,451 51
Mortgage-backed securities- .
government 561 1 2,804 82 3,365 83
Total temporarily
impaired :
securities $ 2,191 3 15,028 302 17,219 305

e —— ———_r e ——  ——A e g R ——A e
p—r0rs=-" 58 ——— 88—

The Company does not consider the unreahzed losses other-than-temporary losses based on the volatility of
the securities market price involved, the credit quality of the securities, and the Company’s ability to hold
the securities until maturity. The secuntles include 6 bonds that have continuous losses for less than 12

months and 33 bonds that have contlnuous losses for more than 12 months.

The $17,219 in securities in

which there is an unrealized loss of $305 includes unrealized losses ranging from $1 to $22 or from 0.01%

to 4.12% of the original cost of the investmént.

The following table shows the gross unreallzed losses and fair value of the Company’s investments,
aggregated by investment category and 1ength of time that individual securities have been in a continuous

unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2005:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
' Gross Gross | Gross
Fair unrealized Fair unrealized" Fair unrealized
Description of Searrities value losses value losses value losses
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. Govemtrent corporations
and agencies $ 2462 38 1171 29 3,633 67
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 2279 29 3,442 109 5721 138
Corporate securities 3,937 70 492 8 4,429 78
Mortgage-backed securities-
government 1,353 25 2,039 62 3,39 87
Toxal temporarily |
impaired \
securities § 10031 162 7,144 208 17,175 370
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The Company does not consider the unreahzed losses other-than-temporary losses based on the volatility of

the securities market prlce involved, the credlt quality of the secuntlesE and the Company’s ablhty to hold

the securities until maturlty The securities mclude 24 bonds that haw continuousilosses for less than 12

months and 12 bonds' that have continuous losses for more than 12 months The $17,175 in securmes in

which there is an unreahzed loss of $370 mcludes unrealized losses rangmg from $1 to $21 or from 0.05%
" to 4.19% of the original cost of the mvestment

The amortized costs and fair values of avarlable for-sale and held-to- matunty securities at December 31,
2006, by contractual maturity, are shown below Expected maturities may differ from contractualimaturities
because borrowers may 1have the right to CET“ or prepay obligations w1th or without call or prepayment

penalties.
] | 2006 |
| Available-for-Sale || Held-to-Maturity
) Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
' \ costs values costs values
n !
Due in one year or less ~ $ 3,253 3,231 1,470 1,473
Due after one year through five years 9,198 9,083 3,374 '3,416
Due after five years through ten years ‘ 1,523 1 561 801 . 784
Due after ten years | 500 494 — e
|
1 14,474 14,36? 5,645 5,673
Mortgage-backed securities 1 4,908 4,852 — . —
. T :
Totals I$ 19,382 19,221 5,645 15 673

} I
Securities with amortized costs of approx1mate]y $4,160 and $2, 915 (fair values of $4,122 anlcl $2,947,

respectively) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively, were* pledged as collateral for public

deposits. !
(4) Loans ' I‘ '
A summary of loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows: | ‘
: 1 2006 2005
Real estate loans: ' ! |
Residential . $ 51,876 55,936
Other | ".:‘7,1 19 53,039
Loans to individuals for household, family and other i '
consutner expenditures | - 46,360 44,369
Commercial and industrial loans 34,036 28,659
All other loans 1 454 935
| It |
Total loans, gross | 299,845 182,938
Less unearned income and fees ' il (214) {162)
Loans, net of unearned income Tand fees 259,631 182,775
Less allowance for loan losses | {1,770 (1,508)
| ' T
Loans, net 3 217,861 181 ,268

| !

Non-accrual loans amounted to approximately $255 $421 and $189 at Décember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
respectively. Interest i 1ncome that would have been earned on non- accruaﬂ loans if they had been current in
accordance with their ongmal terms and the recorded interest that was mcluded in income on these loans
was not significant for 2006, 2005 and 2004.\There were no commnments to lend additional funds o
customers whose loans were on non-accrual status at December 31, 2006. |

!
In the normal course of busmess the Bank has made loans to executlve officers and directors. At
December 31, 2006, loans to executive officers and directors were approxnnately $507 compared to, $120 at

142
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(3)

(6)

December 31, 2005. During 2006, new loans to executive officers and directors amounted to approximately
$470 and repayments amounted to approximately $84. Loans to companies in which executive officers and
directors have an interest amounted to approximately $1,190 and $1,283 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. All such loans were made in the ordinary course of business on:substantially the same terms
and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable
transactions with unrelated persons, and, in the opinion of management, do not involve more than normal
risk or present other unfavorable features.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as
follows:

2006 2005 2004
Balances at beginning of year $ 1,508 1,502 1,528
Provision for loan losses ‘ 339 230 223
Loans charged off (206) (380) (351}
Loan recoveries 129 156 102
Balances at end of year $ 1,770 1,508 1,502

At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the recorded investment in loans for which impairment has been
identified totaled approximately $255, $421 and $189, respectively, with corresponding valuation
allowances of approximately $3, $66 and $100, respectively. The average recorded investment in impaired
loans receivable during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $333, $389 and $349, respectively.
Interest income recognized on a cash basis on impaired loans during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
approximately $15, $3 and $2 respectively.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment, net were comprised of the following as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Land improvements $ 420 420
Buildings 4,628 4,611
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3,002 4,599
8,050 9,630
Less accumulated depreciation (3,937) (5,374)
4,113 4,256
Land 1,151 1,151
Bank premises and equipment, net $ 5,264 5,407
Deposits
A summary of deposits at December 31, 2006 and 2005 follows:
2006 2005
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 3 23,631 21,914
Interest-bearing:
Savings 44,794 36,627
NOW accounts 25,004 28,034
Time deposits — under $100,000 98,330 89.676
Time deposits - $100,000 and over 39,058 32,995
Total interest-bearing deposits 207,186 - 187,332
Total deposits g 230,817 209,246

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturity of time deposits is as follows: $84,583 in 2007; $16,563 in
2008; $17,498 in 2009; $13,974 in 2010 and $4,770 in 201 1.

-
'
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In the normal course of business, the Bank hlas received deposits fromglaxecunve officers and directors. At
December 31, 2006 andl 2005, deposits from executive officers and dlrectors were approximately $2,426
and $1,867, respecuvely All such deposus were received in the ordinary course of business on
substantially the same terms and conditions, mcludmg interest rates, as those prevailing at the same time for
comparable transactions Iwnth unrelated persoﬁs I |

Employee Benefit Plans i l
A

The Bank’ “maintains a nonconmbutory defl‘ned benefit pension plan that covers substantially all of its
employees Benefits are computed based on employees average final compensatlon and years of credited
service. Pension expense|amounted to apprommately $244, $293 and $393 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The change in benefit obhgauon change in plan assets and funded status of the pensmn plan
at September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (most fecent information avallable) and pertinent assumptions are as

follows: |
! ' i
| .| Pension Benefits
Change in Benefit Obligation | 2006 l 12003 - 2004
Benefit obligation at beginning of year l 3 5111 4,571 . 1 4,201
Service cost i 299 301 . 310
Interest cost l 294 274 b252
Actuarial (gain) loss ' (109} ‘ 72 (183)
Benefits paid ' | (688) (107) (9)
Benefit obligation at end of year I 4,907 5,111 » 4,571
Change in Plan Assets | l
| :
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ! 4,383 l 3,741 2,891
Actual return on plan assets l 416 553 309
Employer contribution I BOO ‘ 196 747
Benefit paid \ : (688) | (107) (10)
1
Fair vatue of plan assets at end of year ‘ 4,911 ! 4,383 3,937
Funded status ‘ 4 l (728) , (634)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ' 505 [ 667 852
Unrecognized prior service cost ‘ 35 45 .54
| ‘
Prepaid (accrued) pension benefit cost, included l
‘in other assets (liabilities) | R 544 (16) . 272
1
L l Pension Benefits |
Weighted Average Assumptions as of September 30: 2006 1§ 2005 2004
Discount rate | 6.00% \ 5.75%  6.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets | 8.50% i 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase ; 500% 5.00% 3.00%

The Company selects the expected long-term date of-return-on-assets asslumptlon in consultation with its
investment advisors and actuary This rate is 1ntended to reflect the average rate of return expecte;d to be
earned on the funds mvested or 1o be invested to provide plan: bem.ﬁts Historical performance is
reviewed — especially with respect to real rates of return (net of mﬂanon) for the major asset classes held
or anticipated to be held by the trust, and for theltrusl itself. Undue weight i lS not given to recent expenence

— that may not continue over the measurement penod with higher mgmficance placed on current forecasts
of future long-term econormc ‘conditions. I

v

Because assets are held in a quallﬁed trust, ant1c1pated returns are not reduced for taxes. Further - solely for

this purpose — the plan is assumed to continue’ m force and not terminate dunng the period during which

assets are invested. However, consideration is glven to the potential impact of current and future investment
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policy, cash flow into and out of the trust, and expenses (both investment and non-investment) typically
paid from plan assets (to the extent such expenses are not explicitly estimated within periodic cost).

The components of net pension benefit cost under the plan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 is summarized as follows:

Pension Benefits

2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ 299 301 310
Interest cost 204 274 252
Expected return on plan assets (372) 317 (228)
Net amortization 8 9 9
Recognized net actuarial loss 10 22 43
Net pension benefit cost $ 239 289 . 386

Projected Benefit Payments

The projected benefit payments under the plan are summarized as follows for the years ending September
30:

2007 $§ 36
2008 47
2009 47
2010 50
2011 174
2012-2016 1,270

Plan Asset Allocation

The pension plan’s weighted-average asset allocations at September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, by asset
category, are as follows:

Plan Assets at September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Asset Category:
Mutual funds - fixed income 21% 19% 35%
Mutual funds — equity T1% 31% 65%
Cash and Equivalents 3% 0% 0%
Total 100% 100% 100%

Plan assets are held in a pooled pension trust fund administered by the Vlrgmla Bankers Association. The
pooled pension trust fund is sufﬁcnently diversified to maintain a reasonable level of risk without
imprudently sacrificing return, with a targeted asset allocation of 20% ﬁxed income and 80% cquities. The
Investment Manager selects investment fund managers with demonstrated expenence and expertise, and
funds with demonstrated historical performance, for the implementation of the, pension plan’s investment
strategy. The Investment Manager will consider both actively and passwely managed investment strategies
and will allocate funds across the asset classes to develop an efficient investment structure.
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|
It is the responsibility of the Virginia Bankers Association to admmlster the investments of the pooled
pension trust fund within reasonable costs, bemg careful to avoid. sacnﬁcmg quality. These costs include,

but are not limited to,: management and custodial fees, consulﬂng‘lfees transaction costs and other
administrative costs. | lt

|
l

The Company expects to contribute $318 to iltsl pension plan in 2007,

Contributions

The Company also has a 401(k) plan forL‘whlch the Company does not currently match -employee

contributions to the plan.” |

Income Taxes | i

Income tax expense attributable to income before income tax expense: for the yearv. ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows: I

2006 12005 2004
1
Current $1 955 \ 692 669
Deferred i 161 184 43 .
Total income tax expense $ 1,116 Il 876 712

' il o

Reported income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 a.nd 2005 differed from the amounts
computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% to 1ncome before income tax expense as a

result of the following: . J :
2006 | 2005 2004 .
Computed “expected” income tax expense $ 1,199 1,014 860
Increase (reduction) in income tax expense |
resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest | L (102) (138) (162)
Disallowance of interest expense | 13 13 12
Other, net 1 6 . (13) 2
i ' :
Reported income tax expense $l 1,116 { 876 712

! \ 1
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Loans, principally due to allowance for loan losses 5 481 391
Accrued pension, due to accrual for financial reporting
purposes in excess of actual pension contributions — 6
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities 55 53
Unrecognized net actuarial loss and prior service cost 183 —
Loans, due to unearned fees, net 39 43
Other ‘ 69 60
Total gross deferred tax assets 827 553
Deferred tax liabilities:
Bank premises and equipment, due to differences
in depreciation (153) (104)
Accrued pension, due to actual pension contributions
in excess of accrual for financial reporting purposes (183) —
Net unrealized gains on available-for- sale securities — —
Other . (86) (70)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (422) (174)
Net deferred tax asset, included in other assets  $ 405 : 379

The Bank has determined that a valuation allowance for the gross deferred tax assets is not necessary at
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, since realization of the entire gross deferred tax assets can be
supported by the amounts of taxes paid dunng the carryback periods available under current tax laws.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-|Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments inclede commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments may involve, to varying degrees, credit risk in excess
of the amount recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of these instruments reflect the extent
of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments. ‘

Credit nisk is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss because the other parties to a financial
instrument fail to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract. The Bank’s maximum exposure to
credit loss under commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the
contractual amount of these instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments
and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The Bank requires collateral to support financial instruments when it is deemed necessary. The Bank
evaluates such customers’ credltwonhmess on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained upon
extension of credit is based on management s credit evaluation of the counterpany Collateral may include
deposits held in financial institutions, U.S. Treasury securities, other marketable securities, real estate,
accounts receivable, inventory, and property, plant and equipment.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

Contract amounts at
December 31,
2006 2005

Commitments to extend credit $ 60,883 51,785
Standby letters of credit $ 2,014 " ‘1,684
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| |

! :
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no v1olatlon of any
condition established. in. the contract. Commrtments generally, have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected (o

expire without being drawn upon, the total’ commitment amounts do not necessan]y represent future cash
requirements. | r

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private | borrowmg
arrangements, including|bond financing and smular transactions. Unléss renewed, substantlally all of the
Bank’s standby letters of credit comrmtments at December 31, 2006 will expire within lone year.
Management does not antlc1pate any matertal losses as a result of 'these transactions. The credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit is essenttally the same as that mvolwl.d in extending loans to customers

Concentrations of Credit Risk i

The Bank grants commercial, residential, co!nsumer and agribusiness loans to customers primarily in the
central Vlrgmla area. The Bank has a d1versrﬁed loan portfolio that 1s|not dependent upon any, particular
economic sector. As a whole the portfolio could be affected by general 'economic conditions in the central
Virginia region. : ! '

The Bank’s commercial loan portfolio is d1vers1ﬁed with no mgmﬁcant concentrations of credit. The real
estate loan portfolio consists principally of 114 family residential prop: rty The installment loan portfolio
consists of consumer loans primarily for automobrles and other persona]'rproperty Overall, the Bank’s loan
portfolio is not concentrated within a single 1ndustry or group of industries, the loss of any one or more of
which would generate a matertally adverse 1m'pact on the business of thelBank ~

The Bank has estabhshed operating policies relaung to the credit process and collateral in loan originations.
Loans to purchase real and personal propertyt are generally collateraltzed by the related property Credit
approval is principally a functlon of collateral and the evaluation of the creditworthiness of the! ‘borrower
based on available ﬁnancral information.

At times, the Bank may have cash and cash equwalents at a financial 1nst1tutlon in excess of insured limits.
The Bank places its cash'and cash equwalents with high credit quahty Minancial institutions whose credit
rating is monitored by management to m]mmtzle credit risk.
|

Dividend Restrictions and Capital Requirements I
Bankshares’ principal source of funds for dividend payments is dwtdends received from its subsidiary
Bank. For the years ended December 31, 20061and 20035, dividends from the subsidiary Bank totaled $855
and $780, respectively. | |

[ h

Substantially all of Bankshares retained earmngs consist of undlstnbuted earnings of its sub31d1ary Bank,
which are restricted by various regulations administered by federal bankmg regulatory agencies. Under
applicable federal laws, the Comptroller of the'Currency restricts, wnthout-pnor approval, the total dividend
payments of the Bank in any calendar year to ithe net profits of that yed tr as defined, combined |with the
retained net profits for the two preceding years| |At December 31,.2006, retatned net profits of the Bank that
were free of such restnctton approximated $6,338. '

|

Bankshares and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital reqmrements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet mmtmum‘ capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional dlscretlonary actions by regulators that, if undertaken could hdve a direct ‘material
effect on Bankshares’ consoltdated ﬁnancral“statements Under capltal adequacy guidelines land the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective aCUOI‘l Bankshares and the Bank must meet speCIﬁc capital
guidelines that involve quantttatwe measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance- sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practrces Bankshares and lhe Bank’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative Judgments by the regulators al)out components, risk wetghnngs
and other factors. |
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require Bankshares and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capitall(as defined) to average
assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2006, that Bankshares and the Bank meets
all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

|
As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
categonzed Bankshares and the Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatbryfframework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as “well capitalized,” Bankshares and the Bank must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed Bankshares and
the Bank’s category.

Bankshares and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table below.

To Be “Well
Capitalized” Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2006:
Total Capitat
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
Bankshares consolidated $ 26,197 10.64% § 19,824 8.0% 3% N/A N/A
Bank 25979 10.55% 19,706 8.0% 24,633 10.0%
Tier I Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
Bankshares consolidated 24 427 9.92% 9.864 40% N/A N/A
Bank 24,209 9.83% 9,853 4.0% 14,780 6.0%
Tier I Capital (Leverage)
(1o Average Assets):
Bankshares consolidated 24,427 9.80% 9,980 4.0% N/A N/A
Bank 24,209 9.71% 9,977 4.0% 12,471 5.0%
To Be “Well
) Capitalized” Under
) For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount KRafio Amount Katio Amount “Ratio
As of December 31, 2005:
Total Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
Bankshares consolidated § 24,280 11.23% $ 17,297 8.0% $ N/A N/A
Bank 24,092 11.15% 17,280 8.0% 21,600 10.0%
Tier | Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
Bankshares consolidated 22,172 10.54% 8,651 4.0% N/A N/A
Bank 22,584 10.46% 8,640 4.0% 12,960 6.0%
Tier I Capital (Leverage)
(to Average Assets):
Bankshares consolidated 22772 9.88% 9,220 4.0% N/A N/A
Bank 22,584 9.80% 9,217 4.0% 11,521 5.0%
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(12) Disclosures About Falr Value of Fmanctal Instruments :

SFAS No. 107, Dtsclosures about Fair Va{ue of Financial Insrrumems, requires the Company to disclose
estimated fair values of 1ts financial 1nstruments !

The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the approxamate fair value of each class of
- financial instrument for Wthh it is practtcable to estimate that value.

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

Cash and Due frqm Banks and Federal Funds Sold I
The carrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of fair value. i
Securities . l ) |

The fair value of securities, except state and municipal securities, is estimated based on bid prices
published in ﬁnancml newspapers or btd quotations received: from'securmes dealers. The fair value of
certain state and mumcrpal securities is not readily available through market sources other than dealer
quotations; so fair value estimates are based on quoted market pI‘ICCS of similar mstruments adjusted

for differences between the quoted 1nstruments and the 1nstrumentls being valued.
Mortgage Loans Held Sfor Sale '

Fair values of mongage loans held for sale are based on comnntments on hand from investors or
prevailing market prices.

t

Loans | I |

Fair values are estimated for portfohos of loans with similar hnanc1al characteristics. Loans are

-segregated by type: such as commercral real estate - remdenttal real estate - other! loans to

individuals and other loans. Each loan category is further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate
interest terms.

The fair value of ﬁxed rate loans is calculated by discounting [scheduled cash flows through the
estimated maturity ,usmg estimated market discount rates that reﬂect the credit and interest rate risk
inherent in the loan as well as esttmates for _prepayments. The e‘.tlmate of matunty is based on the
Company’s hrstoncal experience with repayments for each loan classﬁicatlon modified, as required,

by an estimate of the effect of current economic and lending condmons |

'
L 1

Deposits and Note Payab[e to Federal Home Loan Bank |

The fair value of demand deposits, NQW accounts, and savings |deposns is the amount payable on
demand. The fair value of fixed maturity time deposits, cemﬁcateclof deposit and the note payable to
the Federal Home Loan Bank is esttmated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the estlmated
maturity using the rates currently offered for deposits or borrowmgs of similar remaining maturtttes

Commitments to. Ealrtend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit | - 1

The only amounts recorded for commltments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are the
deferred fees ansnng from these unrecogmzed financial 1nstruments These deferred fees are not
deemed significant at December 31, 2006 and 2003, and as such, the related fair values have not been
estimated. ‘ |I

' |

|
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The carrying amounts and approximate fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows at
December 31, 2006 and 2(_)05:

| 2006 ' 2005
Carmng Approximate Carrylng Approximate
‘amounts fair values amounts fair values
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 5,948 5,948 6,591! 6,591
Federal funds sold . 8,638 8.638 7,223 7,223
Securities:
Available-for-sale 19,221 19,221 22,351 22,351
Heid-to-maturity 5,645 5,673 6,910 6,982
Federal Reserve Bank Stock ’ 75 75 75 75
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock ‘ 481 481 454 454
Loans, net of unearned income and t !
fees 209,631 206,740 182,776 180,598
Total financial assets $ 249,639 246,776 226,380 224,274
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 230,817 230,615 209,246 209,343
Note payable 1o Federal Home Loan
Bank 100 100 200 204
Total financial liabilities $ 230,917 230,715 209,446 209,547

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and
information about the financial mstrument' These estimates do not reflect any prermum or discount that
could result from offering for sale at one; 'time the Company’s entire holdings 'of a particular financial
instrument. Because no market exists for a mgmﬁcant portion of the Company’s f"manCIal instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regardmg future expected loss experience, current economic
conditions, risk characteristics of vanous}ﬁnancnal instruments and other' factors. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant ]udgment and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates are based on existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting
to estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not
considered financial instruments. Slgmﬁcant assets that are not considered financial assets include deferred
tax assets and premises and equnpment and other real estate owned. In addition, the tax ramifications related
to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and
have not been considered in the estimates.
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(13) Parent Company Fmanc:al Information |- -

Condensed financial mfonnanon of Bankshares (Parent) is presented below:

r Condensed Balance Sheets |
& 1December 31,
Assets | 2006| 2005
Cash due from subsidiary 1 3 30 22
Investment in sub51d1ary at equnty * 24, 642 23,023
Other assets ! 218 187
Total assets | $ 24,890 23,232
|
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equ'n'ty
Other liabilities | | $ 40 20
It
Stockholders’ equity (notes 11 and 14): : !
Common stock of $3|paI value. Authorized 3,000,000 i
shares; issued and outstandmg 1,459, 589 shares E
in 2006 and | 458 706 shares in 2005 4,37¢ ?| 4,376
Capital surplus ! 604 577
Retained earnings | 19,973 18,362
Accumulated other comprehenswe income (loss), net (106) {103)
Total stockholders’ equity 24,850 23,212
Commitments, contingencies and other matters I
(notes 9, 10 and 11) * ‘ — —
Total llablhties and stockholdc:ars’ equity $ 24,89dL 23,232
————'l—
| ] |
Condensed Statements of Income |
| ' Years ended
| | _ December 31,
| 2006 i} 2005 12004
Income: | ot ' '
Dividends from subsidiary (note 11) | $ 855, 780 705
Expenses: | ' ’
Other expenses ‘l 85, 68 _ 88
Income before i mcome tax benefit and eqmty | {
in undlsmbuted net income of sub51dlary ‘ 770l 712 I 617
Applicable income tax benefit | 29| 34 32
Income before equlty in undistributed net 'i
income of sub31d1ary 799, | 746 I 649
Equity in undistributed net mcome of subsidiary 1,613 ] 1,361 | 1,170
2412)] - 2,107 . 1,819

!
|
Net income : $
|
]
|
|

I
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 3 2412 2,107 1,819
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary (1,613) (1,361) (1,170)
Increase in other assets (38) (34) (30)
Net cash provided by operating activities 761 712 619
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 30 19 —
Cash dividends paid (803) (715) {659)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 20 (1 4
Net cash used in financing activities (753) (697) (655)
Net increase (decrease) in cash due from subsidiary 8 15 {36)
Cash due from subsidiary, beginning of year 22 7 43
Cash due from subsidiary, end of year 3 30 22 7
Stock Options

The Company has two incentive stock option plans. The 1997 Incentive Stock Plan (the 1997 Plan),
pursuant to which the Company’s Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers and key
employees, was effective as of May 1, 1997. The 1997 Plan authorizes grants of options to purchase up to
50,000 shares of the Company’s authorized, but unissued common stock. Accordlngly, 50,000 shares of
authorized, but unissued common stock are reserved for use in the 1997 Plan. All stock options are granted
with an exercise price equal to the stock’s fair market value at the date of grant. At December 31, 2006,
there were 5,000 additional shares available for grant under the 1997 Plan.

The 2004 Incentive Stock Plan (the 2004 Plan), pursuant to which the Company’s Board of Directors may
grant stock options to officers and key employees, was approved by shareholders on April 13, 2004 and
became effective as of May 1, 2004. The 2004 Plan authorizes grants of options to purchase up to 100,000
shares of the Company’s authorized, but unissued common stock. Accordingly, 100,000 shares of
authorized, but unissued common stock are reserved for use in the 2004 Plan. All stock options are granted
with an exercise price equal to the stock’s fair market value at the date of the grant. At December 31, 2006,
there were 100,000 additional shares available for grant under the 2004 Plan.

Stock options generally have 10-year terms, vest at the rate of 20% per year, and become fully exercisable
five years from the date of grant.

During 2006, no stock options were exercised. During 2005, 1,300 stock options were exercised. During
2004, no stock options were exercised. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, there were no options granted to
employees.

A summary of the status of the Bank’s unvested stock awards as of December 31, 2006 and changes during
the year then ended is presented below:
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Welghted Average

Unvested Stock Awards , Shares Gram |Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2006 ' 5,000 " $3.29
Granted 1 - l -
Vested : (3,500) 1 3.39
Forefeitures ' - i -
Unvested at December 31, 2006 ' 1,500 f $3.08

\
At December 31, 2006, optlons for 25,000 shares were exercisable at an exercise price of $10.00.per share,
options for 10,000 shares were exercisable at‘an exercise price of $14. 00 per share, and 6,000 shares were
exercisable at an exercise price of $14.75 pﬁr share. As of Decembcr 31, 2006, there was $3 of total
unrecognized compensatlon costs related to unvested stock options. ThFi cost is expected to be recogmzed

over a weighted-average ¢ of 0.61 years. :
|

Stock option activity during the years ended Dlecember 31, 2006 and 200;5 is as follows:

Number Weighted
: of | average
| shares| - exercise price
a a
B i
Balance at Decemnber 31, 2004 | 45,000 $ 11.92
f
Forfeited I 1, 200 14.38
Exercised ! 1,300 $ 1423
Granted | |- —
I } .
Balance at December 31, 2005 | 42,;500 $ 11.78
Forfeited/Exercised ‘ ‘i—- —_
Granted | — —
Balance at December 31, 2006 i 42500 % 11.78

|

The following table summarizes information at‘aout stock options outstand;ing at December 31, 2006:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- | !
Average !
" Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Number ' Contractual Average Numt:ver Average
Exercise OQutstanding Life Exermse Exercisalti)le at Exercise .
Price at 12/31/06 {in years) | Price 12/31/2006 Price ‘
| I |
$ 10.00 25,000 0.4 $L 10,00 25:5,000 10.00
14.00 10,000 4.5 14.00 IQLOOO 14.00
14.75 7,500 5.6 14.75 61000 14.75

'

|
|
42,500 2.3 5| 11.78 411000 §  11.67
_ -
J
|
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The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding was approximately $441, options exercisable was
approximately $430, and options unvested and expected to vest was approximately $11 at December 31,:
2006.

The total intrinsic value (market value on ciate of exercise less exercise price) of options exercised during
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $0, $4 and $0 respectively. i

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Included in other assets is goodwill of $539 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and other amortizing
intangible assets of $0 and $3 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. There was no change in the
carrying amount of goodwill of $539 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005:
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Income statement data:
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income '
Noninterest expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Per share data:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Cash dividends per share
Book value per share

Income statement data:
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Income tax expense

Net income

Per share data:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Cash dividends per share '
Book value per share

Income statement data:
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Income tax expense

Net income

Per share data:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Cash dividends per share
Book value per share

|
|

1 2006

) First Second. Third lTourth
‘ quarter quarter' quarter quarter
. Il |
$ 3,578 3,781 4015 | 4,243
1412 1,498 1.675 ' 1,840
i 2,166 2,283 2.340 . 2,403
| 65 81 94 99
561 666 628 645
| 1,823 1,949 1,955 ' 2,098
| 263 293 290 268
$: 376 G20 520 T 583
Il ' |
$ 0.39 043, 0.43 ' 0.40
| 0.39 0.42 (.43 . 040
! 0.13 C0.13, 0.14 0.15
; 16.14 16.30, 16.75 16.78
! ‘
3 1l 2005 ne
| First Second H Third Fourth,,
1 quarter quarter quarier qliarter
|! | |
$| 2,033 3061( 3,207 | 3,469
i 1,053 1,074 1,209 11,352
1,880 L98i‘ 1,998 12,117
| 60 82 65 23
| 549 6371 655 555
w 1,699 L781| 1,831 1,855
| 193 224} 229 230
$. 477 537l 528 | 564
. ' !
$ 0.33 0374 0.36 1039,
: 0.32 0.36, 0.36 0.38
0.12 0.12, 0.12 0.13
: 15.25 15.60, 15.75 15.91
| *.
i 12004 _
| First Second [l Third Fourth
| quarter quarter quarter quarter
I l |
$ 2,657 2,637 2,761 2,847
| 849 . 8291 852 | 972
' 1,808 Lsos*| 1,909 1,875
| 108 551 40 . 20
. 570 565" 592 528
| 1,658 1,622 1,817 1,804
i 172 2011\ 185 i 154
$1 440 495 || 459 | 425
| ' f
5, 0.30 0.35 0.31 0.29
| 0.30 0.34 0.31 0.28
| 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.12
‘ 14.98 14.82 | 15.18 15.24
|
|
' |
' |
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‘results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,

CHERRY.
BEICAERTS.

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pinnacle Bankshares Corporation
Altavista, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Bankshares Corporation and
subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes 1n
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive mcome and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year penod
ended December 31, 2006. These consohdated financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank‘ s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that weI plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of matcrlal misstatement. An audit includes exammmg, on a test bams
evidence supporting the amounts and dlsclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estlmates made by management, as well' as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Pinnacle Bankshares Corporaﬂon and subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the

2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

6{7, Bt $Holleod, L.1.P

Raleigh, North Carolina
February 23, 2007
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PINNACLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARY ‘|

Sharcho'lder Information 1
W |
{
l

PERFORlMANCE GRAPH

1 :

The graph below compares total returns assuming reinvestment of d|v1|dends of Pinnacle Bankshares
Common Stock, the NASDAQ Market Index, and|an Industry Peer Group. llndex The graph assumes $100

- invested on December 31, 2001 in Pinnacle Bankshares Corparation” Common Stock and in each of the
indices. In 2006, the ﬁnancml holding compames in the SIC Code Index (,onsnsted of 245 banks w1th the
same standard industry code of 6022 as Pinnacle Banksha:es Corporation.

|
I
- ‘

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOll'AL RETURN*
" AMONG PINNACLE BANKSHARES CORPORATION,
NASDAQ MARKEP’ INDEX AND SIC CODE INDEX

200 - l, L
] )
! /
150 ‘ ' —
" —
e |
5 100 |
o
e |
50 .
F
| !
0 4 : + + —
2001 2002 2003 2004 :2!005 2006
' J
—e— PINNACLE BANKSHARES — #- SIC CODElINDEX
—h— NASDAQ MARKET INDEX
B i
i *ASSUMES $100/INVESTED ON DEC. 31, 2091
ASSUMES' DIVIDEND REINVESTED |
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC. 31,2006 |
| | ;
| _ A
Cumllnlatlve Total Returns For Flscal Year Ending
2001 2002 2003 2004 11 2005 2006
\ T
Pinnacle Bankshares Corp ' 100.00 11811 14533 16220 | 17457  188.83
SIC Code Index 6022 100,00  93.67 122.15  132.84 130.62 14864

NASDAQ Market Index 10000 69.75 104.88  113.70 116.19 128.12




PINNACLE BAfNKSHARES CORPORATION
AII\ID SUBSIDIARY

Shareholder Information
|

Annual Meeting
The 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on April 10, 2007, at 1 l 30 a.m. at the
Fellowship Hall of Altavista Presbyterian Church located at 707 Broad Street; Altavista, Virginia.

Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters !

The Company’s Common Stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board. The followmg table presents
the high and low bid prices per share of the Common Stock, as reported on the OTC Bulletin Board,
and dividend information of the Company for the quarters presented. The hlgh and low bid prices of
the Common Stock presented below reﬂeclt inter-dealer prices and do not 1nclude retail markups,
markdowns or commissions, andd‘.r_n'ay not Frepresent actual transactions. ,

o 2006 2005 |

High Low Dividends High Low ' Dividends
First Quarter $22.00 i$2l.()0 50.13 $23.00 $19.10 | 50.12
Second Quarter S23.0d IS21.05 $0.13 $22.00 $19.25 ; $0.12
Third Quarter $22.00 iSZ0.0S 50.14 $21.00 519.00. $0.12
Fourth Quarter $25.40 $20.75 . $0.15 $21.00  $19.01] $0.13

Each share of Common Stock is entitled to participate equally in dividends, Wthh are payable as and when
determined by the Board of Directors after consideration of the earnings, general economic conditions, the
financial condition of the business and otherlfactorb as might be appropriate. The Company s ability to pay.
dividends is dependent upon its receipt of dividends from its subsidiary. Prior approlval from the Comptroller
of the Currency is required if the total of allldividends declared by a national b'lnk including the proposed
dividend, in any calendar year will exceed the sum of the Bank’s net profits for that year and its retained net
profits for the preceding two calendar years, ll‘ess any required transfers to surp]hs This limitation has not had
a material impact on the Bank’s ability to declare dividends during 2006 and 2005 and is not expected to have

a material impact during 2007. ’ !

As of December 31, 2006, there were approxnmately 384 shareholders of record of Bankshares Common
Stock. |

Requests for Information 1 .

Requests for information about the Company should be directed to Bryan M. Lemley, Secretary,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer, P.0). Box 29, Altavista, Virginia 245 17‘ telephone (434) 369-
3000. A copy of the Company’s Annual[Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2006, will be furnished without charge to shareholders upon written irequest after March 31,
2007.

Shareholders seeking information regarding lost certificates and dmdends should contact Registrar
and Transfer Company in Cranford, New 'Jersey, telephone (800) 368- 5948, Please submit address
changes in writing to:

Registrar and Transfer Company
Investt’ar Relations Department
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford New Jersey 07016-9982
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